

































































Bancpost SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(all amounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}
2.3  Accounting for the effect af hyperinflation

Prior to 1 January 2004 the adjustments and reclassifications made to the statutory records for the
puwrpose of IFRS presentation included the restatement of balances and transactions for the
changes in the general purchasing power of the RON in accordance with TAS 29 (“Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”). IAS 29 requires that the financial statements
prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy he stated in terms of the measuring unit
current at the balance sheet date,

As the characteristics of the economic environment in Romania indicate that hyperinflation has
ceased, effective from 1 January 2004 the Bank no longer applies the provisions of IAS 29,
Accordingly, the amounts expressed in the measuring unit current at 31 December 2003 are treated
as the basis for the carrying amounts in these financial statements,

The restatenient was calculated using the conversion factors derived from the Romanian Consunier
Price Index (“CPI"), published by the National Institute of Statistics

The main guidelines followed in restating the corresponding figures were:
- All corresponding amounts were stated in terms of the measuring unit current at
31 December 2003;

- Non-monetary assets and liabilities (those balance sheet itemns that were not expressed in
terms of the monetary unit current at 31 December 2003) and components of shareholders’
equity were restated from their historical cost by applying the change in the general price
index from the date the non-monetary item originated to 31 December 2003,

The balance shect items affected by the restatements arve “Property, Plant and Equipment” and the
Equity.

2.4 Financial instruments
{w) Classification of financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets into the following IAS 39 categories: financial assets held at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
Management determines the classification of its instruments at initial recognition.

(i Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
This category has two sub-categories; financial assets held for trading (*HFT") and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. A finrancial asset is
classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term, As at 31 December 2016, the Bank had classified as financial assets held for trading,

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] forin an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2016
(all amounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

government bond bought for trading purposes (See Note 7). The Bank currently does not
have any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. Derivatives are also classificd as held for trading,

(i) Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.

(iii) Available-for-sale (“AFS")

AFS investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or
equity prices,

The gain / loss from disposals of AFS investments are presented under “other operating
income” line in the Income Statement,

(b)  Recognition, de-recognition and initial measurement of financial liabilities

The Bank classifies its financial llabilities in the following categories: financial Habilities measured
at amortised cost and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss have lwo sub categories: financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated at falr value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition.

The Bank designates financial liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss when any of the
following apply:

i) it eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition accounting mismatch
inconsistencies;
i) financial liabilities share the same risks with financial assets and those risks are managed

and evaluated on a fair value basis; or
tii) structured products containing embedded derivatives that could significantly modify the
cash flows of the host contract.

A financial liability Is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability of the Bank is replaced by another from the same
counterparty on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as an extinguishment of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement,

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Bank considers the terms to be substantially different, if the discouuted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees recelved and discounted
using the original effective intercst rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original finaucial liability,

If an exchange of debt instruments or modifieation of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment, If the
exchange or modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
adjust the earrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the
modified liability.

{c) Recognition, de-recagnition and initial measurement of financial assets

Purchases and sales of financial assets FVTPL and AFS are recognized on trade-date — the date on
which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset, Loans and receivables are recognized when
cash is advanced to the borrowers. Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs for ail financial assets not carried at fair value through profit and loss. Financial
assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

() Subsequent measurement

AFS financial assets and finaneial assets FVTPL are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
advances, receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the FVTPL category are included in the income
statement in the period in which they avise. Gains and losses arising from changes in the

fair value of AFS financial assets are recognized directly in other comprehensive income, until the
financial asset is derecognized or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income should be recognized in profit or loss. However,
interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the income statement.
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in the income statement when the Bank's
right to receive payment is established,

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost and financial liabilities held for
trading that are carried at fair value through profii or loss

(e Fair value measurement of financial instrumenis

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the prineipal or, in its

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date, The fair value of
a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank ineasures the fair value of an Instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A matket is regarded as active if transactions for the asget or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an on-
going basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques
that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs,
The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take
into account in pricing a transaction. The Bank has elected to use mid-market pricing as a practical
expedient for fair value measurements within a bid-ask spread.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financlal Instrument at initial recognition {s normally the
transaction prices l.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received unless the Bank
determines that the falr value at initlal recognition is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
obzervable markets,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole (see sub-note 3.5).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Bank recognises transfers into and out of the fair value hierarchy levels at the beginning of the
quarter in which a financial instrument's transfer was effected.

2.5 Offsetting finaneial instrunents

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is
an intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Such a right of set off (a) must not be contingent on a future event and (b) must be
legally enforceable in all of the following circumstances: (i) in the normal course of business, (ii) the
event of default and (iif) the event of insolvency or bankruptcy,

2.6 Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered

into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value, Fair values are obtained from quoted
market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

including discounted cash flow models. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative,

The principles of fair value measurement of financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments are described in notes 2.4 (e) and 3.5.

Included in derivatives are instruments purchased from the Parent Bank and contracts entered into
with third parties. The derivatives are initially recognized and subsequently measured at fair value,

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as the conversion option in a
convertible bond, are treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in the income statement, The Bank did not identify any embedded derivatives that
required separation during the reporting period.

All the fair value gains or losses are from derivatives recognized by the Bank through prefit or loss.
2.7 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in the income statement for all instruments measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest income includes conpons earned on
fixed income investiment securities and accrued discount and premium on treasury securities.

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the rclevant petiod.
The effective intcrest rate is the rate that exactly discoumts estimated future cash payments
orreceipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial Hability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument {for example, prepayment options) but dees not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest,

Once a financial asset is determined as impaired, the increase in net present value of the written
down amount due to the passage of time (unwinding), is recognized as interest income using the
rate of interest that was used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided, Loan origination fees for loans which are probable of being drawn down, are deferred
and recognized as adjustments to the effective interest of the loan.

Fee and commission income consists mainly of fees and commissions received for the transfers of
money for customers, trading of securities and foreign exchange, and issuance of letters of
guarantee and letters of credit.

The Bank operations relate to core activity regarding the granting of loans and payment services.
The other fees and commission income refer mainly to Issuance of letters of guarantee, fees for
deposits closed before maturity and other services.

2.9 Net trading income

Net trading income comprises of gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities,
derivatives held for risk inanagement purposes and financial assets and labilities designatcd at fair
value through profit or loss account and include all realized and unrealized fair value changes,
interest and foreign exchange differences on these instruments and other elements.

2.10 Dividends

Dividend income is recognized in the income statement when the Bank's right to receive payment is
established and inflow is probable.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) are reclassified in the financial
statements as pledged assets when the transferee has the Hght by contract or custom to sell or re-
pledge the collateral; the counterparty liability is included in amounts due to banks or due to
custowners, as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (‘reverse repos’) are
recorded as loans and advances to banks or customers, as appropriate. The difference between sale

and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method,

2,12 Impairment of financial asscts
The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial

asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairiment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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o SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

impainnent as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
{a loss event’) and that loss event (or events} has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

In determining whether a loan is individually significant for the purposes of assessing impairment,
the Bank considers a number of factors, including importance of the individual loan relationship
and how it is managed, the size of the loan, and the product line. Consequently, loans to corporate
clients and financial institutions as well as investment securities, are generally considered as
individually significant. Retail lending portfolios are generally assessed for impairment on a
collective basis as they consist of large homogenous portfolios, while exposures that are managed
on an individual basis are assessed individually for impairment.

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is an objective evidence of impairment,

Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Bank ahout the following loss events:

- A breach of contract, such as default or delinqueney;

- The borrower experiences a significant financial difficulty as evidenced by the borrower’s
financial information that the Bank obtains;

- It becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial
reorganization;

- The value of collateral significantly decreases as a result of deterforating market conditions;

- Granting to the borrower followling its significant financial difficulty a concession that the
lender would not consider otherwise; or

- Observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a gronp of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot be yet identified with the individual financial asset.

(a) Assels carried at amorHzed cost

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessiment of itnpairmeut,

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The notes set out on pagces 7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognized in the income statement. If a loan has a varlable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract, As a practical expedient, the Bank may measure impairment on the basis of an
jnstrument's fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial
asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financlal assets are grouped on the basis
of similar eredit risk characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Bank's grading process that considers
asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, pass-due status and other relevant
factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the Bank and historical loss
experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect
the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in
the historical period that do not exist currently. A twelve months loss identification period is
assumed in the computation,

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be directionally
conaistent with changes in related observable data from period to period (for example, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group and their
magnitude), The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Bank to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience,

Reversals of impairment

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account or the asset's carrying amount as appropriate. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Write-off of loans and advances

Aloan and the associated provision are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
The Bank considers all relevant information including the occurrence of a significant change in the
borrower’s financial position such that the borrower can no longer pay the obligation,

The timing of write-off is mainly dependent on whether there is any underlying collateral as well as
the Bank’s estimate of the amount collectible. The number of days past due is considered by the
Bank as an indicator, however it is not regarded as a determining factor.

Unpaid debt continues to be subject to enforcement activity even after it is written-off, except for
limited cases where debt is forgiven by the Bank as an expression of its social responsibility.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision
change for loan impairment in the income statement,

(b)  Assets classified as available for sale

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a finaneial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired.

If any such evidence exists for available-for- sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognized in the income statement. lLinpairment losses recognized in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement,

The Bank kas a monitoring process for the identification of the “Significant” and “Prolonged”
decrease in the fair value on available for sale investments. That process states that significant
decrease means for example that the decline in fair value below costs exceeds more than two times
the standard variation. Regarding the prolonged criteria, the pracess recommends to monitor the
movermesit in the fair value over a period of 5 years and then establish if it is the case of a prolonged
decrease.

2.13 Intangible assels

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
25 of 106




Banecpost SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(all amounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense as
ineurred.

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their useful lives as follows:
Useful lives in years

Major core-banking software 710 10
Other software 5
Licenses 3

2.14 Property and equipment
Cost

Property and equipment are stated at cost, restated to the equivalent putchasing power of the
Romanian Leu at 31 December 2003 for assets acquired prior to 1 January 2004, less accumulated
depreciation and provision for impairment, where required (recognized in 2003).

Costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed when fncurred, Cost of replacing major parts or
components of property and equipment itemns are capitalized and the replaced part is retired,

Gains and losses on disposals of fixed assets are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount at the date of disposal and are recognized in profit or loss,

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other items of property and equipment is caleulated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives.

Useful lives in yeais

Premises 50
Office and computer equipment 3to20
Vehicles 5to10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the term of the underlylng lease or useful life if
shorter.

Hardware and related software that are integral part of the equipment are included in the line office
equipment, fixtures and fittiugs.

2.15 Impairment of non-financial asscts
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for

fmpafrment. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewcd for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units}, Non-financial assets
other than goodswill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

2,16 Finance and operating lease liabilities

Accounting for leases as lessee here the Bank is a lessee in a lease which transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Bank, the assets leased are capitalized in
property and equipment at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding.

The corresponding lease obligations, net of future finance cbarges, are included in horrowings. The
interest cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period using the effective interest
method. The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset or the lease term,

The total payments made under operating leases are charged to other operating expenses in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. When an operating lease is
terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which termination takes place,

2,17  Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise halances with less
than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition: cash; non-restricted balances with central
bauks, including minimum mandatory reserves; loans and advances to banks and thelr acerued
interest, Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amoitised cost,

2,18 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is inore likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole., A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures

The notes set out on pages [7]to [106] form an integral part of these finaneial statements.
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expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation, The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is rccognized as interest expense.

2,19 TFinancial guarantees contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and
other banking facilitles.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial measurement, less amortlzation calculated to recognize in
the income statement the fee income earned on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee
and the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle any financlal obligation arising at the
balance sheet date. These estimates are determined based on experience of similar transactions and
history of past losses, supplemented hy the judgment of management, Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is taken to the income statement under other operating expenses.

a,00 Other credit related commitments

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into other credit related commitments including
loan commitments and letters of credit. Specific provisions are raised against other credit related
commitments when the Bank has a present obligation as a result of a past event, when it is probable
that there will be an outflow of resources and when the outflow can be reliably measured.

2.21 Pension obligations and other post-retirement benefits

The Bank, in the normal course of business, is required to make payments to the Romanian State
funds on behalf of its Romanian employees for pension, health care and unemployment benefit.
Substantially all employees of the Bank are memhers of the State pension plan, The Bank operates a
post retirement benefit scheme, standard legal staff retirement indemnity (SLSRI) hy which each
employee receives two months base salaries if the employee achieves the pension age in the Bank
service without any other supplementary conditions such as how many years of employment they
have in bank . The Bank has no other obligation to provide further services to current or former
employees,

Provision has been made for the actuarial value of the lump sum payable on retirement using the
projected unit credit method. Under this method the cost of providing retirement indemnities is
charged to the income statement so as to spread the cost over the period of service of the
employees, in accordance with the actuarial valuations which are performed every year,

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
28 of 106




Bancpost SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(all amounts in RON thousand uniess otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The SLSRI obtigation is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cask outflows using
the yield on long-term fixed interest bonds of the appropriate term issued by the Rowmanian
Government, The currency and term to maturity of the bonds used are consistent with the currency
and estimated terin of the retirement benefit obligations,

As a result of the Banks's adoption of IAS 19 Amendment, actuarial gains/losses are recognized
directly in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and not to the profit or
loss.

Past service costs and interest expense are recognised immediately in the income statement, In
calculating the standard legal staff retirement obligation, the Bank also copsiders potential
separations before normal retirement based on the terms of previous voluntary separation
schemes,

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Bank before the norinal
retirement date, or whenever an ewmployee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits provided the recognition eriteria are met, The Bank recognises termination benefits at the
earlier of the following dates:

(a) when the Bank can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

) when the Bank recognises costs for a restructuring and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

2,22 Income taxes
) Current income fax

The Bank records profit tax upon net income from the financial statements prepared in accordance
with IFRS and profit tax legislation. Romanian profits tax legislation is based on a fiscal year
ending on 31 December. In recording both the current and deferred income tax charge for the year
ended, the Bank has computed the annual income tax charge based on Romanian profits tax
legislation enacted (or substantially enacted) at the statement of financial position date,

i) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet Hability mecthod, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax lahility is settled.

The notes set out on pages (7] to {106] form an integral part of these financial staternents.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of property and equipment, loan
provision, revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities, provisions for post-retirement
benefits and tax losses carried forward, However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
atises from initial recognition of an asset or Lability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor
loss.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale investments, which are
charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income, is also credited or charged directly to
other comprehensive income and subsequently recognized in the income statement together with
the deferred gain or loss, Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

2,23 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the amount at initia] recognition and
the redemption value is recognized in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Bank commonly acts as trustee and in other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding or
placing of assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Management of financial risk

The Bank's activities cxpose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
sk is core to the financial business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of
being in business. The Bank's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and
return and minimize potential adverse effects on the Bank's financial performance.

The Bank's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the rlsks and adherence to limits by means of
reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management
policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

The Risk Management function is organized at centralized level within the Bank, heing
independent by means of having a direct reporting line to the Executive Vice President responsible
for the coordination of the Risk Management function and Compliance function.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral patt of these financial statements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Risk Management function within the Bank is comprehensive, as the two components ate
being defined therein, namely: (i) the risk control function organized by business lines, a function
that operates via the Risk Control Division ensuring the compliance with the risk policies and
monitoring each significant risk the Bank is exposed to, and (ii) the risk identification, assessment
and monitoring coinponcent organized within distinct units, i.e. the Credit Risk Monitoring Division
and the Risk Monitoring Division

Rank Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Bank's
operating urits, The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as
written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments. In addition,
internal audit is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the control
environment. The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and other
operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and other price risk.

By their nature, the Bank's activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments.
The Bank accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating rates, and for various periods,
and seeks to earn above-average interest marging by investing these funds in high-quality assets.

The Bank seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term funds and lending for longer
periods at higher rates, while maintaining sufficiert liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Bank also seeks to raise its interest margins by obtaining above-average margins, net of
altowances, through lending to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of credit standing.
Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans and advances; the Bank also enters into
guarantees and other commitments such as letters of credit and other bonds.

3.2 Credit risk
a) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loan and advances to customers and to banks at a counterparty level, the
Bank reflects the following components (i) the 'probability of default' by the client or counterparty
on its contractual obligations; (i) the loss identification period; (iii) current exposures to the
counterparty and its likely future development, from which the Bank derive the 'exposure at
default’ and (iv) the likely recovery ratio on the defaulted obligations (the loss given default’),

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a connterparty will be unabtle to pay
amounts in full when due. Impairment provisions are provided where there is objective evidence
that the Bank will not be able to collect all amounts due. Significant changes in the economy, or in
the health of a partieular industry segment that represents a concentration in the Bank’s portfolio,
could result in evidence that is different from those provided for at the balance sheet date.
Management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk,

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of boirowers, and to geographical, client and
industry segments, currencies, credit risk mitigation techniques. Such risks are monitored on a
revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level of credit risk
by industry sector are approved by the Board.

The exposure to any one borrower including bauks and brokers is further restricted by sub-limits
covering on and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading
items such as forward foreign cxchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored
daily,

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and
potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these
lending limits where appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining
collateral and corporate and personal guarantees,

The split of portfolio of Loans and advances to customers of the Bank by industry is detailed in
Note 15, The Bank’s exposure to Central Bank I shown in Note 13 (see “Balances with Central
Bank”).

The Bank has no geographical exposure to a market other than Romania which exceeds 10% of its
total assets.

b Debt securities and other treasury bills

For debt securities and other treasury bills, external ratings such as Standard & Poor's rating or
their equivalents are used by Bank Treasury for management of the credit risk exposures. The
investments in those securities and bills are viewcd as a way to gain a better quality of credit
portfolio and maintain a readily available source to meet funding requirements at the same time.
Some other specific control and mitigation measures on credit risk are outlined below:

() Collateral

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk, The most traditional of
these is the taking of security for funds advances, which is common practice, The Bank implements
guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The
principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

- Mortgages over residential and non-residential properties;

- Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable and;

- Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities,
Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are generally secured; revolving credit
facilities granted to natural persons are generally unsecured. In addition, in order to minimize

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

potential credit losses the Bank will seek to obtain additional collateral from the counterparty as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the
nature of the instrument. Deht securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured,

D Derivatives and settlement risk

The Bank maintains strict control limits on net open derivative positions i.e., the diffcrence between
purchase and sale contracts, by both amount and term. At any one time, the amount subject to
credit risk is limited to the current fair value of instruments that are favourable to the Bank (i.e.,
derivatives whose fair value is positive), which in relation to derivatives is only a small fraction of
the contract, notional values used to express the volume of instruments outstanding. This credit
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall lending limits with customers, together with
potential exposures from market movements.

Collateral or other security is not usually obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments,
except where the Bank requires margin deposits from counterparties.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or equities is inade in the
cxpectation of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterpaity to cover the aggregate of all setttement risk arising from the
Bank’s market transactions on any single day.

@i Credit related commibtments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as
required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit — which represent irrevocable assurances that the
Bank will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties -
carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit - which are
written by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the Bank up
to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions - are collateralized by the underlying
shipments of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a loan,

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in the
form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend
eredit, the Dank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments
diminished by the value of the collateral. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total
unused conmmitments, as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers
maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit
commitments because longer-terim commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than
shorter-term commitments,

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINULD)

3.2,1 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

Credit risk exposures relating to assets are as follows:

2016 201
Balance sheet exposure
Balance with Central Bank 1,010,571 1,404,081
Toanyandadvamcestobanks———————— - 2;36024— 1004853 —
Loans and advances to customers (net) 5,571,882 5,772,793
- Lending to medium size and
large corporate entitles (wholesale)
Gross book value (GBV) 1,785,716 1,923,924
Less Provistons for impairment Losses (51,417) {192,918)
- Consumer lending
Gross book value (GBY) 1,296,610 1,460,798
Less Provisions for impairment Losses (37,484) (182,237)
- Mortgage lending
Gross book value (GBV) 2,955,920 2,466,309
Less Provisions for Impairment Losses (201,731) ~ (177,880)
- Small business lending
Gross book valite (GBV) 556,608 757,103
Less Provisions for impairment Losses (132,340) (282,306)
Trading assets:
- Debt securities 242,038 303,779
Derivative financial instruments 3,946 17,079
Investment securities available for sale
- Debt securities 1,450,059 1,773,622
Other financial assets 47,789 33,765
Total balance sheet exposure 10,686,709 10,199,972
Off-balance sheet exposure
- Letters of guarantee 380,809 444,878
- Letters of eredit 2,836 321
- Undrawn loan commitments 1,145,565 919,038
Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet
items (Note 32 & 3.4) 1,529,210 1,264,237
Exposure as at 31 December 12,215,919 11,764,209

The above table represents the maximum credit rlsk exposure to the Bank at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015, without taking account of any collateral held. For on balance sheet assets, the
exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [L06] form an integral part of these financial statements,
34 of 106




Bancpost SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20106
(ail amounts in RGN thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

‘The Bank monitors an on-going basis the quality of the counterparties, banks or corporate clients,
The counterparty banks are top rank banks, with sound financial situation, The corporate clients
are assessed using the same acceptanee procedures as for loans granting. The off balance sheet
exposure is related to Romanian clients for which the Bank issued letter of guarantees, letter of
credit and other undrawn commitments,

The Loan-to-Value (LTV) ratio of mortgage lending reflects the gross mortgage loan amount at the
balance sheet date over the market value of the mortgage property held as collateral. The Bank
obtains real estate collateral values by combining professional appraisals and real estate price
indices. The LTV ratio of mortgage lending is presented below:

2016 201
Mortgages
Less than 50% 362,505 367,126
50%-70% 341,236 370,980
71%-80% 192,569 186,584
81%-90% 198,043 203,593
91%-100% 249,682 217,154
101%-120% 182,048 217,189
121%-150% 208,424 225,366
Greater than 150% 616,985 666,248
Without Collateral 4,428 12,069
Total exposure 2,355,920 2,466,209
Average LTV 116,3% 119,8%

Maximum amount of the collateral or guarantee that can be considered is presented as follows:

2016
Value of collateral received Guarantees

Real Estate Finangial  Other Total Received
Other financial institutions 919 607 49,825 51,351 2
Non-financial institutions 204,466 868,680 322,099 1,396,145 96,020
Households 1,771,659 7,190 6,212 1,785,061 164,397
Total 1977044 876,477 379.036 3,232,557 260,419
2015
Value of collateral received Guarantees

Real Estate  Financial  Other Total Received
Other financial institutions 997 865 52,302 54,163 29
Non-financial institutions 200,432 940,214 303,221 1,443,866 149,097
Households 1,852,843 7,712 4,953 1,865,508 154,677
Total 2,054,272 948,791 360470 3.363.537 303.803

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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3.2.2 Loans and advances

Loans and advances are summarised as follows:

2016 2015

Loansand Loansand Loansand Loans and

advances to advances to advancesto advances

eustomers banks customers to banks

Neither past due nor impaired 4,524,584 2,360,424 4,453,478 1,094,853

Past due but not impaired 628,437 - 535,433 -

Impaired:

- collectively assessed 669,597 - 1,097,657 -
- individually assessed 172,236 - 521,566

Gross £:.994.854 2,360,424 6,608,134 1,004,853

Less; allowance for impairment (422,972) - (835,341) -

Net loans and advances 5,571,882 2,360,424 5,772,793 1,004,853

The wholesale and small business loans as at 31 December 2016 are covered in aggregate by
collaterals at 67,28% and 63,33%, respectively (2015: 65,80% and 51,6%, respectively). Consumer
loans are generally not collateralised, Mortgage loans are covered in agpgregate by collaterals at
82,3% (2015; 81,36%).

The tables below present the total gross amount, representing the maximum exposure to credit risk
gross of impairment allowance, of loans and advances that are classified as non-impaired (i.e.
“neither past due nor impaired” and “past due but not impaired”) and those classified as impaired.
They also present the impairment allowance recognised for those non-impaired or impaired loans
and advanees that are either iudividually or collectively assessed the total net amount, as well as the
value of collateral held as security to mitigate credit risk.

In addition, the value of collatcral presented in the tables below is capped to the respective net loan
amount, For this purpose, 2015 eomparative information on collaterals have been presented on a
similar basis.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MAWNAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

a) Loans and advarnices neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired at
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 can be assessed by reference to the Bank’s standard
grading system. The following information is based on that system:

2010

Grades:

Satisfactory risk*

Watch list®

Gross loans and advances
Less: allowance for impairment

Net loans and advances
neither past due nor
impaired

2015

Grades:

Satisfactory risk®

Watch list*

Gross loans and advances
Less; allowance for impairment
Netloans and advances
neither past due nor
impaired

Wholesale

1,393,665
99,205
1492870
(2,018)

1,490,852

Wholesale

1,293,011
116,840
1,409,851
(9,409)

1,400,442

Small
Consumer Mortgage Business

1,163,182 1,539,322 329,208
1,163,182 1 22 329,208
(15,278) (2,447) (5,210)
1147004 1536875 323998
Small

&

Consumer Mortgage DBusiness

1,079,372 1,646,207 318,048
1,079,272 1,640,207 318,048

(10,323) (2,154) (2,740)
1,060,049 1,644,053 315,308

Total

4,425,377
99,205
4,524,582
(24,953)

Total

4,336,638
116,840
4,453,478
{24,626)

4,428,852

*Satisfactory risk customers represent current wholesale clients rated 1 to 6 (according to the
Bank’s staudard grading system) and current retail loans that do not present impairment indicators
while watch list loans represent current wholesale loans rated 7.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] forim an integral part of these financial statements,
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

b Loans and advances to custoniers past due but net impaired

Gross amount of loans and advances by class to customers that were past due but not impaired were
as follows:

2016
Small

Wholesale Consumer  Mortgage Business Total
Past due up to 29 days 171,854 78,068 257,762 1,501 509,185
Past due 30 - Bg days 6,350 17,774 85,3006 8,202 117,632
Past due 90 — 180 days(i) 38 19 200 106 363
Past due more than 180 days (i) 959 - - - 959
Past due greater than 1 year (i) 297 - - - 297
Gross loans and advances 179,498 95,861 343,268 9,800 628,436
Less; allowance for impairment (2,028) (8,878) (7,883) (1,197) (19,986)
Netloans and advances
past due but not impaired 177,470 86,985 335,385 8,612 608,452
Fair value of collateral 105,513 28 286,248 7,151 398,940

2015
Small
Wholesgle Consumer Mortgage Business Total

Past due up to 29 days 41,237 92,702 264,522 6,087 404,548
Past due 3o - 89 days 21,109 17,991 79,076 6,361 124,537
Past due 9o — 180 days (i) 5,000 10 - - 5,010
Past due more than 180 days (i) - - - - -
Past due greater than 1 year (i) 1,338 - - - 1,338
Gross loans and advances 68,684 110,703 343,598 12,448 535.433
Less: allowance for impairment (1,941) (4,908) {4,533) {(1,049) (22,431)
Net loans and advances past
due but not impaired 66,743 105,795 339,005 11,399 523,002
Fair value of collateral 56,903 525 278,312 9,442 345,183

(i)-the Bank includes in past due but not impaired category loans individually analysed that are past
due and are over collateralised and for which the individual provision is nil.

Based on past experience, consumer, mortgage and small business loans less than 9o days past due
(180 days past due in case of mortgage portfolio as of December 2015), are not considered
impaired, unless specific information indicates to the contrary (a concession offered to the
customer as a consequence of financial difficulties, contract being denounced or under hard
collection procedures, other information indicating that part of the loan has minimal probability of
being serviced, regardless of delinqueney). For wholesale loans the impairment trigger is the
internal rating (i.e, loans having ratings hetween 1 and 7 are not considered impaired).

The notes set out on pages {7} to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

However, based on the internal collective assessment methodology, the Bank books provisions on a
collective basis for loans current and past due and for the above mentioned categories the
provisions incurred at December, 2016 are RON 14,856 thousand (2015: RON 12,431 thousand).

c) Impaired loans and advances to customers collectively assessed
For collectively assessed loans, these are treated as impaired based on historical loss data for groups
of loans with similar characteristics. The provision is compnted for loans with impairment

indicators using statistical provision percentages computed based on the historical loss data.

The gross exposure before provision for collectively assessed loans and advances to customers is
RON 669,599 thousand (2015: RON 1,097,657 thousand).

2016
B Small v olesale  Mortgag + Total
siness olesale origage Consumer ot
Collectivel d
o Ve asease 196,803 - 435135 3757 669,599
All
img:ﬁ;":n';‘“ (117,763) - (179,664)  (37.512) (334,939)
Net 1 d
a(;::'ag?:gss on 79,130 - 256,471 59 334,661
individually assessed
Fair value of collateral 69,189 - 236,985 - 306,175
2015
Bussiﬁe{:il: Wholesnle Morigage Consumer Total
f:;lf,‘fn"el" assessed 413,803 ] 413,193 270,661 1,097,657
ﬁg;ggﬂor (271,128) . (128619 (166,944) (566,691
Netl d
advaone 142,675 284574 103,717 530,966
individually assessed
Fair value of collateral 102,680 ) 220,245 103 332,028

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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d) Impaived loans and advances individually assessed

For individually assessed accounts, oans are treated as impaired as soon as there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred.

The gross exposure before provision for individually assessed loans and advances to customers is
RON 172,236 thousand (2015: RON 521,566 thousand). The breakdown of the gross amount of
individually assessed loans and advances by classes is:

2016
Small
Business Wholesale NMortgage Consumer Total
Individually assessed loans 20,695 113,349 38,192 - 172,236
Allowance for impairment (14,494) {47.455) (26,084) - (88,033)
Net loans and advances
individually assessed 6,201 65,894 12,108 z 84,203
Fair value of collateral 5,862 55,681 12,108 - 73,651
2015
Small
Business Wholesale Mortgage Consumer Tatal
Individually assessed loans 12,804 445,389 63,311 62 521,566
Allowance for impairment (7,389) (181,568) (42,574) (62) {231,593)
Net loans and advances
individually essessed 5,415 263,821 20,737 z 289,973
Fair value of collateral 6,321 133,570 21,088 - 160,979

The financial effect of collateral is presented by disclosing collateral values separately for (i) those
assets where collateral and other credit enhancements are equal to or exceed gross outstanding of
the asset (“over-collateralised assets”) and (ii) those assets where collateral and other credit
enhancements are less than the carrying value of the asset (“under-collateralised assets”).

The effect of collateral is presented in the following table:

2016

Qver-collateralised assets Under-collateralised assets

Gross Ealr value Gross Fair velue

cutstanding  of collateral outstanding _of collateral

Mortgage loans 1,344,034 2,634,836 1,011,885 629,337
Small Business lending 317,077 811,310 230,532 115,898
‘Wholesale loans 1,140,916 3,410,719 644,799 111,423
2,802,027 6,856,865 1,896,216 856,658

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2015
Over-collateralized assets Under-collateralised assets
Gross Fair value Gross Fair value
outstanding of collateral outstanding  of collateral
Mortgage loans 1,345,446 2,629,163 1,120,863 698,942
Small Business lending 355,938 908,949 401,165 141,097
Wholesale loans 1,356,370 3,622,212 567,554 196,429
3,057,754 7,160,424 2,089.582 1,036,458

3.2.3 Debt Securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities and equity investments by rating agency
designatton at 31 December 2016, based on Moody's ratings or their equivalent:

Trading Available for

securities gale seeurities Total
Baag 242,039 1,299,312 1,541,351
Unrated - 150,747 150,747
Total 242,039 1,450,059 1,602,008

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating agency designaton at
31 December 2015, based on Moody’s ratings or their equivalent;

Trading Available for

securities sale securities Total
Baag 303,779 1,621,256 1,925,035
Unrated - 152,366 152,366
Total 303,779 1773,622 2,077,401

An amount of RON 1,541 million (2015: 1,925 million) included in securities rated Baas at
31 December 2016 relates to severeign debt issued by Romanian Government and local authorities,

The unrated securities include equity investments and investments in mutual funds’ and local
administration security debts,

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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3.2.4 Concentration of eredit risk

Industry sectors

The following table breaks down the Bank’s main credit exposure at their net carrying amounts, as
categorised by the industry sectors of its counterparties.

Loans and advances to
banks
Loans and advances to
customers

(net of provision);

- Mortgages

- Consumer tending
(incl. credit cards)

- Small business lending

- Corporate lending

Financial assets held

for trading

- Debt securities

- Drerivative financial
instruments

Financial assets

available for sale

- Debt securities

- Other financial assets
As at 31 December 2016

Commerce

and Private
services Individuals

- 2;154»236

= 1,259,103

286,386 -
750,612 -
3:946 -
1,040,944 3,413,330

Manufacturing Conshruction

61,263
501,128

38,857
440,252

Other

2,360,424

37,845
42,200

242,038

1,450,059

47,789
4,180,355

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] formn an integral part of these financial statements.
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2,360,424

2,154,236
1,259,103
424,351
1,734,192
242,038
3,946
1,450,059
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Loans and advances to
Banks

Loans and advances to
eustomers
(net of provision):

- Mortgages

- Consumer lending
(inc), credit cards}

- Small business lending

- Corporate lending

Financial assets held
for trading

-Debt securities

-Derivative financial

instruments

Financial asscts
available for sale

-Debt securities

Other financial assets

As at 31 December 2015

3.3 Market risk

Commerce
and
services

T

338,411
675,901

1,015,753

Private
individuals

2,288,429

1,278,559

2015

Manufacturing Constiruction

67,633
530,108

45,013
470,846

Other Total

1,094,853 1,094,853

- 2,288,429

- 1,278,559
23,742 474,799
54,151 1,731,006

303,779 303,779

15,638 17,079

1,773,622 1,773,622
33,765 33,765

3:290,550 8.995.801

The Bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from
open positions in interest rate, curtency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general
and specific market movements and changes in the lcvel of volatility of market rates or prices such
as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices, The Bank separates
exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios.

The market risks arising from trading and non-trading activities are concentrated in Bank Treasury
and monitored by two teams separately. Regular reports are submitted to the Board of Directors
and heads of each business unit,

‘The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,

44 of 106




Bancpost SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(all amounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Trading portfolios include those positions arising from market-making transactions where the Bank
acts as prineipal with clients or with the market.

Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from the interest rate management of the Bank's retail and
commercial banking assets and liabilities. Non-trading portfolios also consist of foreign exchange
and equity risks arising from the Bank's available-for-sale investments.

(a) Sensitvity analysis
Sensitivity calculation parameters

Interest Rate Sensitivity; The table below summarizes the impact of a parallel shift of the yield
curve on the Bank's income statement and other comprehensive income performed on an interest
rate gap model by applying a paralle! shift of 100 basis points. Based on the fluctuation of interest
rates in the prior year and Bank's Treasury Department forecast analysis +100 basis points is
determined to be a reasonably possible shift.

Forelgn Exchange Rates Scnsitivity: The table below summarizes the impact of a reasonably
possible change of 10% in the value of RON against foreign currencies on the Bank's income
statement and other comprehensive income calculated by applying the change to monetary
financia! instruments denominated in foreign currencies held by the Bank as at 31 December.

At 31 December 2016, if market interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/ lower and with all
other variables held constant, profit for the year would have been RON 711 thousand (2015: RON
2,904 thousand) lower/ higher and comprehensive income would have been RON 46,422 thousand
(z015: RON 66,950 thousand) lower/ higher,

At 31 December 2016, if RON had strengthened/ weakened by 10% against relevant foreign
currencies (all other variables held constant) profit for the year would have been RON 1,056
thousand lower / higher- (2015: RON 1,851 thousand higher/ lower) and comprehensive income
would have been unaffected.

2016 2015
Sensitivity Sensitivity
Total ofincome Sensitivity Total of income

sengitivity statement of equity sensitivity statement

Interest rate (+100 h.p.

parallel shift) (45,705) 716 (46,421) (69,464) (2,904)
Foreign exchange (10%

change in RON against

foreign currencies) 608 608 - (1,851) (1,851)

The notes sct out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statcments.
45 of 106

Sensitivity
of equity

(66,560)




Banepost SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(all amounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

M) Interest rate risk

Interest sensitivity of assets, liabilitles and off balance sheet items — re-pricing analysis

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank
takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on
both its fair value and cash flow risks, Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but
may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise, The Board sets limits on

the level of mismatch of interest rate re-pricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored datly.

The table below summarises the Bank's exposure to interest rate risks at 31 December 2016.
Included in the table are the Bank's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by earlier
of contractual interest and re-pricing or maturity date,

Cash

Balances with
Central Bank

Loans and advances
to banks

Loans and advances
to customers
Trading assets
Derlvate financial
instruments
Investment securities
avaiable for sale
Other financial
assets

Total assets

Upto1 1monthto
month 3 months

1,010,571 -
2,357,412 -

2,501,050 2,047,136

6,623 4,500
1,760 493
225,274 -

6,102,600 2,052,129

3 months
to1year

838,001
110,655

983

949.729

109,559
100,250

710

894,325

1,104,844

Overs
years

76,046
20,010

330,460

426,516

Non-
interest

bhearing

480,992

4,012

The notes set out on pages (7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,

46 of 106

2016

Total

480,992

1,010,571

2,360,424

5,571,882
242,038

3,946

1,450,059
47,789

11,167,701
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Due to banks
Due to customers

Derivative financial

instruments

Other borrowed funds

Other financial
liabilities
Total liabilities

Interest rate
sensitivity gap

Cash

Balances with
Central Bank

Loans and advances
to banks

Loans and advances
to customers
Trading assets
Derivate financial
instruments
Investment securities
available for sale
Other financial assets
Total financial
asseis

Upto1i
month

174,539
5,696,355
5,204

527,107

6,403, 205

Uptoi
month

499,655
1,404,081
1,088,934

2,231,742

1,192

123,604

5,249,208

imonth to
3 months

256,655
1,570,773
4,117

270,689

2,102,234

1 month to
3 months

2,445,253

41

43,630

2,488,924

3 months
to 1 yvear

1,686,643
2,130

72,595

1,761,268

(811,639]

3 months
to1year

1,030,340
113,452

15,775

49,337

1,208,904

1year to

8,794

1 year to
Ars

64,037
162,929

71

1,379,715

1,606,752

Overs
!CHI‘S

1,422
27,398

177,335

206,155

Non-
interest
earin

9,682

68,724

78,406

Non-
interest
hearing

5,920

33,765

39,685

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statemenis,
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440,87
8,956,62
17,38

870,35
68,72

2015

Total
499,655

1,404,081
1,094,854

5,772,794
303,779

17,079

1,773,621
33,765

10,849,628
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Due to banks
Due to eustomers
Derivative financial
instruments
Other horrowed
funds

Other finanefal
liabilities

Total financial
liabilities
Interest rate
sensitivity gap

Upto1 1monthto

mnonth

35,626
5,679,819

7:395

418,254

6,141,094

3 months

678,675
1,354,528

8,528

299,691

2,341,422

147,502

3 months
to 1 vear

1,375,164

2,150

107,268

1 year to
ears

29,600
15,095

71

Over s
years

206,155

Non-
Interest
bearing Total

9,682 753,583
8,424,606

18,144

825,213

63,263 63,263
72.945 10,084,809

(33.260)  814.817

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(c) Foreign exchange risk

The Bank takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign eurrency exchange
rates on its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets limits on the level of exposure by
currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily. The
Bank uses currency forwards, cross currency swaps and curency swaps to inanage its foreign
exchange risk. The tables above summarise the Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate
risk at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, Included in the table are the Bank's assets and

liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.

Not exposed
to currency
visk
RON
Cash 399,084
Balances with Central Bank 657,533
Loans and advances to bauks 5,005
Loang and advances to customers 2,950,371
Trading assets 242,038
Derivative financial instruments 2,602
Investment sceurities available for
sale 1,016,788
Other financial assets 29,477
Total assets 5,312,897
Due to banks 91,958
Due to customers 5,839,368
Derivative financial instruments 16,377
Other borrowed funds 100,520
Other financial liabilities 51,754
Total liabilities 6,099,977
Net on balance sheet position (787,080}
Net off balance sheet position -
Net foreign exchange position (787,080}

uUsD

15,704
197,045
37,661

11,351
2,253
264.014
77,467
252,320
11,540
3:559
344,895
(80,881)
82,145
1,064

Exposed to currency risk
EUR Other
40,533 25,671
353,038 -
2,125,031 33,343
1,795,739 788,111
605 739
421,920 -
5,097 962
4,741,963 848,826
271,451 -
2,816,445 48,485
1,011 -
758,330 -
12,236 1,174
3.859,473 49659
882,490 799,167
(881,234) (781,419)
1,257 17,748

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total

480,992
1,010,571
2,360,424
5,571,882
242,038
3,946

1,450,059
47,789
11,167,702
440,876
8,956,628
17,388
870,390
68,724

10 00
813,698
(1,580,507)
(766.809)
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Cash

Balances with Central Bank

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Trading assets

Derivative financial instruments
Investment securities available
for sale

Other financial assets

Total assets

Due to banks

Due to customers

Derivative financial instruments
Other borrowed funds

Other financial liabilities

Total Habilitles

Net on balance sheet position
Net off balance sheet position

Net foreign exchange pasition

{(d) Other price risk

Not

exposed to

curreney
risk
RON

391,440
883,057
7
2,627,626
293,202
14,768

1,258,333
29,690
5,498.434
63,546
5,779,801
16,843
52,551
5,912,741
{414,307}

{a14,307)

UsD
13,096
186,320
54,517

2

1,070
255,011
(o]
244,966
2

8,376
1,393
254,737
274
(906)
(632)

EUR

64,808
521,024
808,818

2,137,222
10,577
1,112

515,289
2,367
4,515,158
690,037
2,354,261
1,299
816,838
8,558
3,870,903
—280.164
(242,298)
37866

2015

Exposed to curreney risk

Other Total

30,311 499,655

- 1,404,081

9,702 1,094,853
953,428 5,772,793
- 303,779

1,197 17,079

- 1,773,622
387 33,765
995,026 10,899,630

- 753,583

45,578 8,424,606

- 18,144

- 825,014

762 63,263

46,340 10,084,811
948,686 814,819

(986,712) (1,229,916)
(38,026) [(415.097)

The Bank has limited exposure to equity price risk. Transactions in equity products are monitored
and authorised by the Group treasury. At December 2016, if equity prices at that date had been 10%
(2015: 10%) lower with ail other variables held constant, impact on equity for the year would have
been RON 116 thousand (2015: RON 116 thousand) lower mainly as a result of a decrease in the fair

value of the mutual funds classified as available for sale.

3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its
financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The
consequence may he the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil commitments to

lend.

The Bank's liquidity management process, as carried out within the Bank and monitored by a

separate team in Bank Treasury, includes:

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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- Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements
can be met. This includes replenishment of funds as they mature or is borrowed by
custamers. The Bank maintains an active presence in global money markets to enable this
to happen;

- Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be lignidated as
protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

- Monitoring balance sheet lignidity ratios against internal and regutatory requirements; and
- Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities,

The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current
accounts, maturing deposits, loan draw-downs and guarantees, The Bank does not maintain
excessive cash resources to meet all of these nceds, as experience shows that a minimum level of
relnvestment of inaturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty. The Board sets
limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the
minimum level of inter-bank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover
withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Bank under financial liabilities by earlier of
remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date and expected payment date, The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Bank
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2016
1month

Upto1 to3 gmonths 1year to Over 5

month months to 1 year ears years Total
Cash 480,992 - - - - 480,992
Balances with
Central Bank 1,010,571 - - - - 1,010,571
Loans and advances to
banks 2,360,424 - - - - 2,360,429
Loans and advances to
customers gross 1,787,406 376,920 1,355,440 2,260,443 2,514,039 8,294,248
Trading assets - 4,492 114,600 99,108 23,838 242,038
Derivate financial
instruments 176,443 1,135 - - - 177,578
Investment securities
available for sale - - - 990,583 459,476 1,450,059
Other financial assets 47,789 47,789
Total assets 5,863,625 982,547 1,470,040 3,350,134 2997353 14,063,609
Due to banks 181,999 306 1,376 - 268,300 452,072
Due to customers 1,217,502 1,368,186 3,236,747 1,778,686 1,360,174 8,970,204
Derivative financial
instruinents 177,417 1,884 907 - - 180,208
Other borrowed funds 215,116 77,048 82,413 239,203 264,504 878,285
Other financial
liabilities 154,661 6,316 28,082 137,222 70,314 396,596
Total liabilities 1946606 1,453,740 3,349,526 155111 1,972,382  10,877.455
Financial guarantees 383,645 - - - - 383,645
Credit commitments
(irrevocable loan
commitments) 166,478 - - - - 166,478
Total cumulative
asset/(liability)
liguidity gap 3,366,806 (1,071,103 (1,870.486) 1,195,092 1,024,970 2,036,121

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] forin an integral part of these financial statements,
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Cash

Balances with
Central Bank

Loans and advances
to banks

Loans and advances
to customers gross
Trading assets
Derivate financial
instruments
Investment securities
available for sale
Other financial assets
Total nssets

Due to banks

Due to customers
Derivative financial
instruments

Other borrowed funds
Other financial
liabilities

Total liabilities
Financial guarantees
Credit commitinents
(irrevocable loan
commitments)

Total cumulative
asset/(liability)
liquidity gap

Uptot
month
499,655

1,404,081
1,095,000

1,812,763

553,260

33,765
5.298,524
34,028

4,932,646

553,533
141,930

150,655
5,812,792
445,199

102,892

£962,359)

i1month to

3 months

264,919

155910
43,630
464,459
2,734

1,651,947

159,094
78,628

6,316
1,898,719

{ 1,43_4,2Q2l

3 months
to 1 year

1,440,524
113,452

49,337

1,603,313
12,303
1,736,718

1,441
90,100

28,082

1,868,644

{265,331}

1year to
5vears

2,268,139
162,929

1,385,881

3,816,949

477,139
26,380

245,084

137,222
885,82

2,931,124

Overs
years

2,834,895

27,398

300,939

3,163,292

287,555

98,532

331,566

70,314
787,967

2,375,265

2015

Total
499,655

1,404,081
1,095,000

8,621,240
303,779

709,170

1,779,787
33,765
14,446,477
813,759
8,446,223

714,068
887,308

392,589
11,253,947
445,199

102,892

2,644,439

*Included in assets held for liguidity 1isk arve: cash, NBR reserves, due from other banks, held for

trading securities

Management is confident that i spite of a substantial portion of deposits from customers having
contractital maturity dates within three months, diversification of these deposits by number and
type of deposits, and the past cxperience of the Bank would indicate that these deposits are rolled
over and provide stable souree of funding for the Bank.

The notes sct out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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3.5  Fairvalue of financial assets and liabilities
Financial instruments carried af, fair value

Trading assets, derivatives and other transactions undertaken for trading purposes, as well as
available-for-sale securities and assets and liabilities designated at fair-value-through-profit-or-loss
are measured at fair value by reference to quoted prices when available, If quoted prices are not
available, the fair values are estimated using valuation techniques.

These financial instruments carried at fair value are categorised into the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 based on whether the inputs to the fair values are observable or
unobservable, as follows:

Level 1 — Finanelal instruments measured based on quoted prices in active markets for identical
financial instruments that an entity can access at the measurement date. A market is considered
active when quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency and represent actually and regularly occurring
transactions. These include actively guoted debt instruments, equity and derivative instruments
traded on exchanges, as well as mutual funds and unit-linked products that have regularly and
frequently published quotes.

Level 2 — Finanejal instruments measured using valuation techniques with the following inputs: i)
quoted prices for similar financial instruments in active markets, i} quoted prices for identical or
similar financial instruments in markets that are not active, ifi} inputs other than quoted prices that
are directly or indirectly observable, mainly interest rates and yleld curves observable at commonly
quoted intervals, forward exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads and implied volatilities
obtained from internationally recognised market data providers and iv) may also Include other
unobservable inputs which are insignificant to the entire fair value measurement, Level 2 financial
instruments mainly include over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives and less-liguid debt instruments.

Level 3 — Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques with significant unobservable
inputs. When developing unobservable inputs, best information available is used, including own
data, while at the same time market participants' assumptions are reflected (e.g. assumptions about
risk}, Level g finaneial instruments include unguoted equity instruments.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The fair value hierarchy categorisation of the Bank's financial assets and liabilities carried at fair
value is presented in the following table:

Level 1

Level 2

Financial assets

measured at falr

value:

Financial

instruments held

for trading-debt 242,038
Derivative financial

instruments .
Available-for-sale

investment securities

- debt 1,344,758
- equity -
Total Financial

assets 1,586,796,

Financlal

liabilities

measured at fair

value!

Derivative financial

instruments -
Total Financial

Liabilities -

3,946

86,212

17,388

12,388

Level

2015

Total

242,038

3,946

1,344,758
105,301

1,606,043

17,388

12288

Levela

303,779

1,650,018

1,953,797

Level

(&

17,079

85,928

18,144

18,244

- 303,779

T 17,079

- 1,650,018
37,676 123,604

In 2015 and 2016 the Bank has no amounts transferred between fair value hierarchy levels.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair valie measurement as at December 2016:

Balance at 1 January

Gain/{loss) included in Other Comprehensive Income

Gain/(loss) included in profit or loss

Balance at 31 December

2016

37,676

(18,587)

19,089

37,676 2,094,480

- 18,144

= 18,144

201

6,356
30,586
734
32,676

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.

55 of 106




Bancpost SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(all amounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Bank's valuation processes

The Bank uses widely recognized valuation models for determining the fair value of common
financial instruments, such as interest and cross currency swaps, that use only observable market
data and require little management estimation and judgment, Observable prices or model inputs
are usually available in the market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange-traded and simple
over-the-counter derivatives. Availability of observable market priees and model inputs reduces the
need for management judgment and estimation and also reduces the uncertainty assoclated with
determining fair values,

Where valuation techniques are used to determine the fair values of financial instruments, they are
validated against historical data and published forecasts and, where possible, against current or
recent observed transactions in different instruments, and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the personnel that created them. All models are certified before they are
used and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. Fair values estimates obtalned from models are adjusted for any other faetors, such as
liquidity risk or model uncertainties, to the extent that market participants would take them into
account in pricing the instrument. Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include
adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the bank entity and the counterparty, where
appropriate.

The Bank establlshes the processes and procedures governing the fair valuations, in line with the
Bank's accounting policies. Some of the specific valuation controls include; verification of
observable pricing, re-performance of model valuations, a review and approval process for new
models and/or changes to models, calibration and back-testing against observable market
transactions, where available, analysis of signiflcant valuation movements, etc, Where third parties'
valuations are used for fair value measurement, these are reviewed in order to ensure compliance
with the requirements of IFRS 13.

Valuation techniques

Over-The-Counter (OTC) derivative financial instruments are fair valued by discounting expected
cash flows using market interest rates at the measurement date. Counterparty credit risk
adjustments and own credit risk adjustments are applied to OTC derivatives, where appropriate.
Bilateral credit risk adjustinents consider the expected cash flows between the Bank and its
counterparties under the relcvant terms of the derivative instruments and the effect of the credit
risk on the valuation of these cash flows. As appropriate in circumstances, the Bank considers also
the effect of any credit risk mitigating arrangements, including collateral agreements and master
nctting agreements on the calculation of credit risk valuation adjustments (CVAs).

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Bank determines fair values for debt securities held using quoted market prices in active
markets for securities with similar credit risk, maturity and yield or by using discounted cash flows
method.

Financial itnstruments not carrted at fair value

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities
which are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, analysed by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which each falr value measurement is included:

2016
Total
Total fair  carrying
Levelr Level2 Level 3 value  amount

Financial assets
- Corporate lending - - 1,721,429 1,721,429 1,734,189
- Small Business lending - - 445,625 445,625 423,933
- Consumer lending - - 1,417,094 1,417,004 1,259,476
- Mortgage - - 2,861,801 2,361,891 2,154,284
Loans and advances to - - 5946,039 5946,030 5571882

customers

2015
‘Total
Total fair  carrying
Level1 Level2 Level 3 value  amount

Financial assets
- Corporate lending - - 1,703,817 1,703,817 1,731,006
- Small Business lending - - 479,934 479,934 474,797
- Consumer lending - - 1,404,042 1,404,642 1,278,561
- Mortgage - - 2,528,017 2,528,017 2,288,429

Loans and advances to

customers - = 6,116,410 6116410 5,772,793

The assumptions and methodologies underlying the caleulation of fair values of financial
instruments not carried at fair value on the balance sheet date are in line with those used to
caleulate the fair values for financial instruments carried at fair value and are as follows:

For loans and advances to customers quoted market prices are not available as there arc no active
markets where these instruments are traded, The fair values are estimated by discounting future
cash flows over the time period they are expected to be recovered, using appropriate risk-adjusted
rates. Loans are grouped into homogenous assets with similar characteristics, as monitored by
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

management, such as product, borrower type and delinquency status, in order to Improve the
nceuracy of the estimated valuation outputs. In estimating future cash flows, the Bank makes
assumptlons on expected prepayments, product spreads and timing of collateral realisation, The
discount rates incorporate itnputs for expected credit losses and intcrest rates, as appropriate,

For other financial instruments which are short term or re-price at frequent intervals (cash and
balances with central banks, loans and advances to banks, due to central and other banks and due
to customers), the carrying amounts represent reasonable approximations of fair values.

Financial Instruments by Measurement Category

For the purposes of measurement, IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,
elassifies financial assets into the following categories: (a) loans and receivables; (b) available-for-
sale financial assets and (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”). Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss have two sub-categories: (i) assets designated as such
upon initial recognition, and (ii) those classified as held for irading. All of the Bank’s financial
assets fall in the loans and receivables, available for sale assets and trading assets,

All of the Bank's financial liabilities except for derivatives were carried at amortised cost.
Derivatives belong to the fair value through profit or loss measurement category and were held for

trading.

The following table provides a reconciliation of financial assets with these measurement categories:

2016
Available
Loans and forsale Trading

reeeivables assets assets Total

Assets
Cash 480,992 - - 480,992
Balances with Central Bank 1,010,571 - - 1,010,571
Loans and advances to banks 2,360,424 - - 2,360,424
Loans and advances to customess (net) 5,571,882 - ~ 5,571,882
Trading assets - - 242,038 242,038
Derivative financial instruments - - 3,046 3,946
Investment securities, available for sale - 1,450,059 - 1,450,059
Other financial assets 45,337 2,452 - 47,789
Total financial assets 9,469,206 1,452,511 245,984 11,167,701
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2015

Available
Loans and for sale Trading
receivables assets assets Tot

Assels
Cash 499,655 - - 499,655
Balances with Central Bank 1,404,081 - - 1,404,081
Loans and advances to banks 1,004,853 - - 1,094,853
Loans and advances to customers (net) 5,772,793 - - 5,772,793
Trading assets - - 303,779 303,779
Derivative financial instruments - - 17,079 17,079
Investment securities, available for sale - 1,773,622 - 1,773,622
Other financial assets 33,765 - - 33,765
Total financial assets 8,805,147 1,773,622 320858 10,899,627

3.6 Management of Capital

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the

face of balance sheets, are:

- "To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where
the Bank operates;

- To safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

- To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored by the Bank 's management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee and the European
Community Directives, as implemented by the National Bank of Romania, for supervisory purposes.
The required information is filed with the National Bank of Romania on a quarterly basis. The
Capital Adequacy ratio of the Bank was calculated in accordance with Basel III principles. The risk-
weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of five risk weights classified aecording to the
nature of and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated with each asset and
counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is
adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent
nature of the potential losses.

The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the Bauk for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, During these periods, the Bank complied with the
externally imposed capital requirements to which they are subject.
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Tier 1 capital
Share capital

Share premium
Legal reserve
General risk reserves
Special reserves
General reserves
Accumulated losses
Minority interests
Less: Intangibles

Less: Other deductions from Tier 1 capital

Less: Prudential filters-provisions
Less: Tax filters

Total qualifying Tier 1 capital
(core capital)

Tier 2 capital

Lligible Subordinated capital

Less: Prudential filters-provisions

Total qualifying Tier 2 capital
(additional own funds)

Available Own Funds
Operational Risk
Total eapital requirement

CAD ratios:

Total capital adequacy ratio
Core Capital Ratio

Regulatory Total Capital Ratio

2016

1,350,246
81,133
43,324
41,583
69,386
24,585
(409,306)
(99,194)
(4,723)
(57,102)
(28,612)

1,011,320

359,559
(55.798)

303,761

1,315,082
89,200
473.967

22,20%
17,07%
10%

2015

1,350,246
81,133
42,190
41,583
65,737
33,639

(433,901)

(96,038)

(3,948)
(98,360)
(26,938)

955,343
403,600
(8,360)
30R,246
1,260,589

87,907
491,697

20,51%

15,57%
10%

According to NBR orders 32/26.03.2014 and 52/30.04.2014 the Bank has the obligation to
recognize additional own funds for a number of debtors. Total capital adeguacy ratio including
Pillar II reguirements as at 31 December 2016 was 22,2% ( 2015: 20,51%), As at 31 December 2016
the Bank’s capital adequacy it is in compliance with NBR regulation.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The Bank makes estimates and asswmptions that affect the amounts recognised in the financial
statements, and the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial year.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on management’s experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, in the process of applying the accounting policies. Judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and estimates that can
cause 2 significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next
finanecial year include:

Going concern

Management prepared these finaneial statements on a going concern basis. In making this
judgement management considered the Bank’s financial position, current intentions, profitability
of operations and access to financial resources, and analysed the impact of the recent financial
crisis on future operations of the Bank, Further considerations are presented in Note 2.1 ¢).

Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgement, In making this judgement, the Bank evaluates, among
other factors, the volatility in share price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there
is evidence of changes in techuology or deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry
and sector performance, or operational or financing cash flows,

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank regularly reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss for the year, the Bank makes judgements as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual
loan in that portfolio, This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or loeal economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group, Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assunptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences betwecn loss estimates and actual loss experience.

For the retail portfolios (mortgage, consumer and small business lending), statistical analysis of
histovical loss experience including the realizable value of real estate properties held as collateral
and timing of foreclosure is the primary tool used in order to determine the future customer
behaviour and payment patterns.
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Due to the stressed macroeconomic environment during the last years, depending on the portfolio
under examination, there is a level of uncertainty in terms of the level of futurc cash flows as well as
the time these cash flows will come. Management exercises judgment to determine the applicable
recovery rates which are affected by the existing economic conditions.

Impairment losses for the medium size and large corporate entities are based on estimates of
discounted future cash flows of the individual loans, taking into account repayments and
realization of any assets held as collateral against the loans. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about a deltor’s financial situation and the net realizable value of
any underlying collateral. In estimating individnal impairment allowance, the Bank considers
multipie risk factors such as industry prospects, financial condition and outtook of borrower, net
realizable value of any collateral and therefore, there is no single factor to which the Bank's
individual impairment allowance as a whole is highly sensitive.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Estimates of impairment for certain categories of mortgage loans were impacted in 2016 by the new
Law 77/2016 regarding deed in payment for some real estate assets for cancelling/writing-off the
obligations assumed by debtors through loans (Deed in Payment Law) and subsequent rulings by
the Romanian Constitutional Court related to this law requiring the debtors to prove the hardship
element in order to be able to apply the law, which increased the uncertainty around the probability
of default for affected clients of the Bank and the degree of judgement required by management to
assess the required level of provision for such loans.

The Bank caleulated provisions for all debtors that requested the Bank to cancel their outstanding
loan exposure in exchange of the real estate collateral. Also for the rest of the population for which
the provisions of the law might be applicable a collective provision was assessed by the Bank.

The management made judgements régarding the mortgage loans portfolio for which the
“hardship” may apply and the probability of default for them. In estimating the population the
Bank analysed the Loan to Value of the loans and behavioural aspects related to mortgage loan
portfolio. The PD’s were constructed based on Loan to Value thresholds and by extrapolating past
behaviour.

The Bank is closely monitoring any relevant developments to update the estimate of the effect on its
financial statements in accordance with its accounting policies,
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Risk provisions for abusive clauses in the loan contracts

The Bank recorded at the end of 2016 a provision for abusive clauses existing in the loan contracts
foltowing the entering into force of the OUG 50/2010 (see Note 25).

Management developed a methodology to estimate the required provision for abusive clauses
making agssumptions based on more recent history (2016 evolution of new started litigations and
the results of closed ones), The methodology also involves making assumptions about the number
of future legal cases to be brought against the Bank and the likely outcome of current and possible
future cases. These assumplions are inherently difficult to estimate, and the estimation uncertainty
was higher in 2016 due to the publicity that existed around the proposed law to enforce banks to
convert Swiss Franc denominated loans into local currency (Proposed Swiss Frane Law) which was
declared as unconstitutional on procedural and content grounds. Details regarding provisions for
litigations are presented in Note 25,

Fuair value of derivatives and certain other inshruments

Information about fair values of instruments that were valued using assumptions that are not based
on observable market data is disclosed in Note 3.5.

De-recognition of financial assels

Management applies judgement to determine if substantially all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of financial assets are transferred to eounterparties, in particular which risks and
rewvards are the most significant and what constitutes substantially all +isks and rewards.

Deferred income tax asset recognition

The recognised deferred tax asset represents income taxcs recoverable through future deductions
from taxable profits, and is recorded in the statement of financial position. Deferred income tax
assets are recorded to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable, The future
taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits that are probable in the future are based on a
medium term business plan prepaved by mmanagement and extrapolated resuits thereafter, The
business plan is based on management expectations that aie believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances,

Total deferred income tax as at 31 December 2016 was of RON 61,435 thousands (2015; 51,660
thousands) coming from temporary differences and tax loss carried forwards. Deferred income tax
assets are recognized for tax loss carried forwards to the extent that the realization of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable, The Bank recognized deferred income tax
asset of RON 48,712 thousand (2015: RON 42,862 thousand deferred income tax asset) in respect
of a fiscal loss carried forward amounting to RON 304,447 thousand (2015: RON 267,887 thousand
fiscal loss} that can be carried forward against future taxable income. In Romania, the tax period of
the fiscal loss carried forward remain open for 7 years, Management estimates that the Bank will
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record sufficicnt taxable profit in the future periods either from normal banking operations or by
utilizing tax planning opportunities related to the future use of a reserve established under retained
carnings as at 1 January 2012 following the implementation of the National Bank of Romania order
27/2010 and corresponding amendments to the tax legislation,

Initial recognition of related party hransactions

In the normal course of business the Bank enters into transactions with its related parties, IAS 39
requires initial recognition of financial instruments based on their fair values. Judgement is applied
in determining if transactions are priced at market or non-market interest rates, where there is no
actlve market for such transactions. The basis for judgement is pricing for similar types of
transactions with unrelated partles and effective interest rate analysis. Terms and conditions of
related party balances are disclosed in Note 29.

5 INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

2010 201

Interest incoine

Loans and advances to customers 351,343 439,855
Debt investment securities avallable for sale 32,207 38,557
Due from other banks 14,224 16,681
Totsl interest income 397,774 495,093
Interest expense

Due to customers 73,708 139,817
Due to banks 8,596 17,367
Repos (repurchase agreements) 29 1,094
Other borrowed funds 2,871 5,400
Total interest expense 85,204 163,678
Net interest income 312,570 331,415

Interest income includes RON 62,102 thousand (2015: RON 51,766 thousand) interest income,
recognised on impaired loans to customers.

6 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE

2016 201
Fee and commission income
Fee and commissions income from bank operation 72,676 83,629
Other fee and commission income 45,843 49,845
Financial assets administration fee 3,500 4,258
Total fee and commission income 122,019 137,732
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Fee and eommission expense
Customer transactions
Transactions with other banks

Total fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

19,932
15,593
35,525

86,494

The bank operations relate to core activity regarding the granting of loans and payment services, The
other fees and commission income refer mainly to issuance of letter of gnarantees, fees for deposits closed

before maturity and other services.

7 NET TRADING INCOME

2016
Gain from foreign exchange: 34,190
-Net foreign exchange gains from transactions 10,915
-Net effect of translation of foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities 28,275
Gain/(Loss) from derivative instruments 7,119
Gain from held for trading securities 4,011
Total net trading income 50,320
8 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2016
Other income 8,538
Dividend income 4,342
Total other operating tncome 12,880
0 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2016
Salaries and wages 120,218
Social contribution 7:319
Contributions to defined state benefits scheme 20,157
(pensions)
Services expense 44,685
Other tax and contribution 41,806
Rental expenses 35,250
Utilities 6,556
Communication 3,857
Depreciation, amnortization and impairment 32,218
(Note 19 and 20)
Loss on disposals of fixed assets (7,385)
Repairs, maintenance and utilities 19,006
Postage, consumables 4,043
Other expenses 26,607

2015
144,316
13,942

130,374

(ﬂ Z,12:3!
2,197
59,390

201

4,947
734

50681

2015
142,466
7,702
20,494

42,460
56,295
33,946
6,158
3,701
33,869

3,068
18,513
4,315
26,695
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9 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Travel expensges 1,220 905
Advertising 13,754 12,498
Insurance premiums 2,124 2,676
Impairment charge for other assets (Note 21) (104) (2,775)
Provision for other contingent liabilities and other
provisions 21,475 (4,538)
Total administrative and other operating

expenses 392,806 408,448

Audit fees for Financial Statements for year ended 2016 of RON 781 thousands (2015: RON 1.175
thousands). For other consultancy services, lawyers or legal fees, the Bank had paid during the year
2016 RON 2,399 thousands (2015: RON 557 thousands).

10 IMPAIRMENT CHARGE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

2016 2015
Impairment charge for loans to customers (Note 16) 194,480 105,812
Recoveries from loans previously written off (Note 16) (84,975) (4,996)
Provision for other credit commitments 2,478 (2,177)
Total Impairment charge for credit losses 111,083 98,639

11 INCOME TAXES
() Components of income tax expense / (benefit)

Income tax expense recorded in profit or loss for the year comprises the following:

2016 201
Current tax - -
Deferred tax (3,384) (6,570)
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year (2,384) (6,570)

()  Reconciliation betiween the tax expense and profit or loss multiplied by
applicable tax rate

2016 2015
Profit/ (loss) before tax 22,676 28,677
Theoretical tax charge credit at statutory rate
{2016: 16%; 2015: 16%) 3,628 4,588
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 22,355 29,334
Income not subject to tax (16,835) (27,518)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses carry
forwards (6,433) (6,110)
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11 INCOME TAXES (CONTINUEDD)

Difference related to EX gains/iosses for provisions,
booked in FX account (249) (238)
Difference related to amortizatiou hooked for

sold/destroyed fixed assets during the year - (6,628)
Recognition of previously unrecognised differed tax asset (5,850) -
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year {3,384) {6,570)

Current income tax is caleulated by applying a rate of 16 %, deferred income taxes are calculated on
temporary differences under the liability method using a profit tax rate of 16%,

The accounting profit recorded by the Bank in 2016 of (RON 26,060 thousand) was adjusted for the
fiscal profit with RON 14,144 thousand, Furthermore, the fiscal profit recorded by the Bank in 2016
of RON 40,204 thousand was added the fiscal loss carried forwards from previous periods, The
fiscal loss carry forwards by the Bank as at 31 December 2016 of RON 404,222 thousand
corresponds to a potential deferred tax asset of RON 64,676 thousands,

The Bank has recognised in the statement of financial positions a deferted tax asset of only RON
48,712 thonsang, based on the Bank’s projections related to future profits, Please see Note 4 for
details,

The Bank has unrecognised potential deferred tax assets in respeet of unused tax loss carry
forwards of RON 15,964 thousand (2015: 67,775), The tax loss carry forwards expire as follows:

Tax loss carry-forwards expiring by the end of;

31 December 2019: 161,864 thousands
91 December 2020:56,218 thousands
31 December 2021: 186,140 thousands

{c) Deferred taxes analysed by type of temporary difference

Differences between IFRS and statutory taxation regulations in Romania give rise to temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and lHabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. The tax effect of the movements in these temporary differences is detailed
helow,
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11 INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Tax effect of
deduetible/(taxable)

temporary differences and tax

loss carry forwards

Differences in the tax and
accounting base for buildings

Loan origination fees and interest

Fiscal loss

Other aceruals

Other provisions

Tax effects of taxable
temporary differences

Fixed assets and investments

Gain on fair value of investment
securities available for sale

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

Recognised deferred tax asset
Recognised deferred tax liability
Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

1-Jan-16

15,652
42,862

2,639
12,435

21,899
9,366

12,533
51,689

51,689

51,689

Credited/
(eharged) to
profit or loss

2,084

(244)
5,850
(1,053)
(1,570)

Credited/ (charged)
to other
comprechensive

Iy

mcome

6,961

(6,361)
6,361

6,361

6,361
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i1 INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Tax effect of deductible/(taxable)
temporary differences and tax
loss carry forwards

Differences in the tax and accounting
base for buildings

Loan origination fees and interest

Fiscal loss

Other accruals

Other provisions

Tax effects of taxable temporary
differences

Fixed assets and investtnents

Gain on fair value of investment

securities available for sale

Loss on remeasurement of retirement
benefits obligation

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

Recognised deferred tax asset

Recognised deferred tax liability

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

68,879
16,134
42,862

2,582
7,301

24,643
11,227

Credited/
(charged)
to profit
or loss

4,709
{(482)

57
5,134

(1,861)
{1,861)

Credited/
(charged) to
other
eomprchensive
income

(883)

(883)

883

883

883

31-Dee-15

15,652
42,862
2,639
12,435
9,366
12,608
(165)
51,689

51,689

51,689
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11 INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

(:3] Current and deferred tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income

Current and deferred tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income are as
follows:

2016 2015
Income Income
Before- tax Nect-of- Before- tax Net-of-
tax (expense) tax tax {(expensc) tax

amount /benefil amount amount /benefit amount

Available-for-sale

investments:
- (Gains) less losses arising
during the year 87436  (13,990) 73,446 38,656 (6,185) 32,471
-(Gains) less losses reclassified
to profit or loss upon disposal  {65,201) 10,432 54,769 39,010 6,242 32,768
-Actuarial gain/(losses) on
post-employment benefit
obligation 3,669 (587) 3,082 (5,166) 827  (4,339)
Other comprehensive
income 25,904 (4145) 21,759 (5.520) 883  (4.637)
12 CASH
2016 2015
Cash on hand 324,504 353,206
Cash on ATM 156,488 146,449
Total cash 480,092 499,655
13 BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK
2016 201
Balances with the NBR
In RON 657,533 883,055
In EUR 353,038 521,026
Total balances with Central Bank 1,010,571 1,404,081
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13 BALANCES WITH CENTRAYL BANK (CONTINUED)

Cwrrent accounts are required to satisfy the mandatory reserve requirements of the National Bank
of Romanla. This reserve is a minimum average deposit with a holding period of one month, based
on resources attracted on previous month. The cash halance held with central bank at the reporting
date meets these requirements. During 2016 the interest rates ranged from 0,16% to 0,25%
(2015: 0,16% to 0,27%) and for reserves held in RON was between 0,8% and 0,31% (2015: 0,8%
and 0,31%) for reserves held in EUR.

During 2016 the ratio for minimum reserves held in RON maintained to 8% (2015: 8%), and for
foreign currency decreased to 10% (2015: 14%}).

14 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS

2016 201
Current accounts 123,205 113,276
Placements with banks as sight and term deposits 1,010,507 981,577
Reverse repos 1,226,712 -
Total Loans and advances to banks 2,360,424 1,004,853

As at 31 December 2016 the placements with initial maturity below 3 months amounting to
RON 2,360,423 thousand (2015: RON 1,094,853 thousand) were included in cash and cash
equivalents (Note 28).

During 2016 interest on placements on RON ranged from 0,5% to 0,75% (2015: from 1,5% to
1,85%) with maturity less than three months, For USD ranged from 0,75% to 1,40% (2015: from
0,02% to 0,38%). For EUR ranged from expense 0,2% to income 1,895% (=2015: from 0,5% to
2,09%), As at 31 December 2016 placements witb banks included sight and term deposits placed
with Parent Bank amounting to RON 807,816 thousand (2015: RON 633,430 thousand).

The table below presents an analysis of Loans and advances to Banks hy rating agency designation
that are neither past due nor impaired based on Moody’s rating or their equivalent:

'The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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14 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2016:

Neither past due nor
impaired

Al

A3

Baai

Baag

Bag

Caa2

Caag

Unrated

Total Loans and
advances to banks

Current
accounts

1,329
108,245

6,639

6,294

644

123,205

Placements with
hanks as sight and

term deposits

15,017

103,279

a8,730
807,816

45,665

1,010,507

Reverse repos
(agrecments to

resell)

=
=
=5

- 16,346
- 108,245
- 103,279
- 6,639
- 3Br730
1,226,712 2,040,822
- 54
- 46n309

1226712 2,360,424

An amount of RON 2,041 million (2015: RON 642 million) included in rated Caa2 (Caa3 at
31 December 2015) relates to placements with Eurobank Ergasias SA (Parent Bank),

31 December 2015:

Neither past due nor
impaired

Aaa

Al

A2

A3

Baai

Baa2

Baag

Bag

Caa3

Unrated

Total Loans and
advances to banks

Current
accounts

61,533
42,002
8,840
go1

113,276

Placements with
banks as sight and
term deposits

12,650
1,357
60,477
2,903
157,614
67,867
45,244
633,465

981,577

Reverse repos
(agreements to
resell) Total

- 12,650
- 1,357
- 60,477
- 64»436
- 42,002
- 157,614
B 67:867
- 45,244
- 642,305
- 901

L - 1,004,853

As at 31 December 2016, the bank has engaged in reverse repo transactions with Furobank Ergasias
on Hellenie Financial Stability Fund bonds as follows;
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14 LOANS AND ADVANCES T( BANKS (CONTINUED)

Reverse repo

31 December 2016:

Issue code Amount
Eurobank Ergasias EU000A1G0AY3 177,421
Eurobank Ergasias EU000A1G0ANY 298,986
Eurobank Ergasias EUo00A1G0AM1 417,130
Eurobank Ergasias EUoco0A1GoAM1 433,175
Total reverse repo 1,220,712

15  LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Maturity
Value date datc
28-Dec-2016 04-Jan-2017

28-Dec-2016 04-Jan-2017
28-Dec-2016 04-Jan-2017

Analysis by sector for corporate loans and by product for loans to individuals;

Analysis by sector for wholesale
Industry

Commerce

Services

Construction

Real estate

Analysis by product for retail
Consumer

Mortgage

Small Business Banking

Credit cards and overdraft facilities

Less: Provision for loan impairment

Total loans and advances to customers

28-Dec-2016 04-Jan-2017
2016 2015
520,318 589,187
488,602 471,581
289,609 279,649
443,287 523,321
43,900 60,186
958,252 1,036,033
2,355,920 2,466,309
556,608 757,103
338,358 424,765
(422,972} (835,341}
5,571.882 5,772,703

The notes sct out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,

73 of 106




Bancpost SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
{all amounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Movements in the provision for loan impairment during 2016 are as follows:

Wholesale Consumer Mortgage

loans
Provision for loan
impairment at
1 January 2010 192,018
Net eharge for the year (Note 10) (1,314)
Amounts written off (141,953)
Foreign exchange differences (1,352)
Effects of interest income
recognised for impaired loans 376
Provision for loan
impairment at
31 December 2016 48,675

Movements in the provision for loan impairment during 2015 are as follows:

loans

182,237
85,557
(241,765)
(537)

25.492

Wholesale Consumer Mortgage

loans

Provision for loan

Impairment at

1 January 2015 187,521
Net charge for the year (Note 10) 22,863
Amounts written off (17,854}
Foreign exchange differences 2,090
Effects of interest income

recognised for impaired loans (1,703)
Provision for loan

impeirment at

31 December 2015 192,018

loans

245,288
1,110
(66,476}
2,009

Small

business

loans loans
177,880 282,306
80,727 29,510
(37,538) (180,204)
2,426 (76)
(3,222) (3,004}
220,273 128,532
Small

business

loans loans
146,998 321,208
61,421 20,417
(38,242)  (55,498)
13,515 3,053
(5814)  (6,875)
177,878 282,305

194,480
(601,460)
461

(5,850)

e
=]
=
=

901,115
105,811

(178,070}
20,880

(14,392)

835,341
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15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TQ CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

During 2016, the Bank has coucluded 2 transfer agreements with ERB New Europe Funding II
(February 2016 and April 2016) regarding curreut aud non-performing loans. Substantially all
risks and rewards associated with the related portfolios were transferred from the Bank to the
above mentioned counterparties through the agreements concluded. Post transfer the bank acts as
an administrator of these loans. As a consequence, it respect to these transfers, in total the Bank
derccognized net contractnal receivables with a carrying amount of RON 243,204 thousand at the
time of the transfers, In total there was a net gain of 7,694 thousand RON recognized in the Profit
or Loss Account resulting in respect of these transfers,

In the second quarter of 2016, the Bank completed the assignment of a portfolio of non-performing
gross loans of RON 210,907 thousand (RON 55,247 thousaud, net of provision for immpairment),
which represented significant part of consumer unsecured loans past due more than 9o days as at
31 December 2015. Overall, the transactions resulted in a gain of RON 9,784 thousand that has
been recognized in profit and loss account in “impairment charge for credit losses”,

16 TRADING SECURITIES

2016 2015
Romanian government bonds 242,038 303,779
Total trading securities 242,038 2303779

Trading securities are carried at fair value which also reflects any credit risk related write-downs.
As trading securitles are carried at their fair values based on observable market data using mid
prices from NBR,

17  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Bank uses derivative instruinents for non-hedging purposes:

- Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase foreign and domestic currency,
including spot transactions. Foreign curreacy and interest rate futures are contractual
obligations to receive or pay a net amount hased on changes in currency rates or interest
rates or to buy or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a future date at a
specified price, established in an organized financial market. The credit risk is negligible, as
futures contracts are collateralized by cash or marketable securities, and changes in the
futures’ contraet value are settled daily with the exchange. Forward rate agreements are
individually negotiated interest rate futures that call for a cash settlement at a future date
for the difference between a contracted rate of interest and the current market rate, based
on a notional principal amount.

- Foreign eurrency options are contractual agreements under which the seller (writer) grants
the purchaser (holder) the right. but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell
(a put option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of a foreign
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%7

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

ciirrency at a pre-determined price. The seller receives a premium from the purchaser in
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange. The options are negotiated between
the Bank and a customer (OTC).

Currency and Interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for
another. Swaps result in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates (for example.
fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these (that is, cross-currency interest rate
swaps). No exchange of principal takes place, except for certain currency swaps. The
Bank’s credit risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to fulfil their obligation. This risk is monitored on an on-going basis
with reference to the current fair value. a proportion of the notional amount of the contracts
and the liquidity of the market.

An interest rate cap is a derivative in which the buyer received payments at the end of each
period in which the interest rate exceeds the agreed strike price. An Interest rate flooris a

derivative in which the buyer received payments at the end of each period in which the
interest rate is below the agreed strike price.

The cross currency interest rate swaps have been mainly undertaken with the Parent Bank
and represents the major part of the derivative transactions, They are disclosed as well in
Note 30.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basls for
comparison with instruments recognized on the balance sheet but do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the

instruments and, therefore do not indieate the Bank’s exposure to credit or price risks. The
derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (labilities) as a result of
fluctuations in wnarket interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The
aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative financial Instruments on hand. The
extent to which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, And thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabilities. Can fluctuate significantly from time to
time,

The reverse repurchase agreement represents the operation of buying securities/assets with
the provision that it will resell the same securities/assets to same seller for an agreed-upon
price on a certain day. The reverse repos have been mainly undertaken with the Parent
Bank and with Banca Transilvania during 2016.
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17 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The notional amounts fair values of derivative instruments held at the balance sheet date and rating
agency designation based on Moody's rating or the internal rating of the Bank (MRI) are set out

below:

At 31 December 2016
Derivatives held for trading
a) Foreign exchange derivatives
Caa2
6.1
Currency swaps
Caa2
Aag
Bai
OTC currency options assets
Caa2
Unrated
OTC currency options liability
h) Interest rate derivatives
Caa2
Unrated
6.1
Interest rate swaps
Al
Aaz
Aag
Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Caag
Interest rate options

Total

Contract/notional
Amount

36,578
36,578
73,156
1,936,812
109,576
68,117
2,114,505
2,661
2,661
5,322

69,187
1,071
68,117
138,375
231,245
138,209
317,877
687.331
115,329
115,92

3.134,018

Fair values
Assets  Liahilitics

820
8ag
1,663
119

P E!@%I

610
610
210
136
393

3,946

(733}
{733)
(8,129}
(565)
(178)
(8,872}
5

5

(989)
(568)
(5,620}
(zaz7}
(610)
610

(17,387}
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17  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Contract/notional Fair values
At 31 December 2015 Amount Assets Liabilities
Derivatives held for trading
a) Forelgn exchange derivatives
Caag 48,188 37 (920)
6.4 37,329 956 -
Currency forwards 85,517 903 (920)
Caag 1,985,908 1,001 (12,550)
BB- 76,917 13 (88)
Baasg 56,556 30 (11)
Aa2 509,911 - (3,033)
Currency swaps 2,629,202 1,045 (15.682)
Caa3 4,926 144 (131)
unrated 878 - (13)
OTC eurrency options 5.804 144 (144}
b) interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 109,594 985 (1,076}
Aaz 452,450 13,106 (197)
Aaa 438,029 804 (125)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 890,479 13,910 (321)
Caag 1,425 - (2)
8.1 2,850 2 -
Interest rate aptions 4.275 2 {(2)
Total 3,724,962 17,079 (18,144)

18 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

2016 201
Romanian government bonds a) 1,344,758 1,650,018
Out of which under REPO agreements 22g/1682 -0
Investments in Mutual Funds b) 86,071 85,028
Equity investments c) 19,230 37,676
Total invesiment securlties avallable for sale 1,450,059 1,773,622

The debt securities are not collateralised.

The movements in investment securitles available for sale are as follows:
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INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

2016 201

Carrying amount at 1 January 1,773,622 1,724,283
Purchases 828,359 1,574,203
Disposals of investment securities available for sale {1,120,885) (1,525,690)
Fair value gains less losses (32,402} (557)
Foreign exchange differences 1,365 1,383

Carrying amount at 31 December 1,450,059 1,773,622

a)

b}

c)

Debt securities include treasury bills denominated in RON and EUR issued by the Ministry
of Public Finance having up to five years maturity. The RON denominated ones bear
interest rates ranging from 1,25% to 5,95% (2o1s: from 1,43% to 5,85%). As at 31 December
2016 the EUR denominate ones bear interest rates ranging of 1,25% to 3,40%% (2o15: from
3,4% to 6,5%). Repurchase receivables represents securities sold under sale and repurchase
agreements which the counterparty has the right, by contract or custom, to sell or re-
pledge. The repurchase agrecments are short-term in nature.

The Bank is involved in various types of structured entities, such as mutual funds and
private equity funds. A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting
or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as
when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are
directed by means of contractual arrangements. The entities have restricted activities, a
narrow well defined objective, insufficient equity to periit it to finance its activities without
subordinated financial support and financing in the form of multiple contractually linked
instruments to investors that create concentrations of credit or other risks. During 2010,
the Bank invested in two mutual funds Bancpost LF Active Balance and Bancpost LF Money
Market Cash Fund, At 31 December 2016, the participation was 59,87% in LF Balanced
Active Fund (59,87% as at 31 December 2015) and 88,96% in LF Money Market ash Fund
(88,96% as at 31 December 2015). The funds are inanaged by Eurobank Fund Management
Company SA (member of the Eurobank group). The administrator manages all the funds of
the Eurobank Group in Romania,

Equity investments
At 31 December, the principal equity investment securities available for sale were:
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18  INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Fair value
Nature of Couniryof Share- Share-
Name business registration holding 2016 holding 2o15
central
depository
Depozitarul Central for securities
S.A, transactions Romania 2,60% 776 2,60% 776
local
settlement
Transfond S.A. entity Romanta 4,03% 5512 4,03% 5,512
local
Casa De Compensire settlement
BucuresHt S.A. entity Romania 0,02% 1 0,02% 1
credit
Biroul De Credit S.A. bureau Romania 7,66% 1,176 7,37% 1,176
international
settlement United
S.W.IE.T SCRL entity Kingdom 0,01% 140 0,01% 140
United
Visa Europe Limited card agency Kingdom 0,00% - 0,00% 29,797
ERB Retail Services SA  consumer
IFN finance Romania 0,17% 207 0,i7% 207
Fundatia Bancpost Romania 100,00% 67 100,00% 67
United
Visa Inc Card agency Kingdom  0,00% 11,351 - -
Total 19,230  14.2% 32676

As announced by Visa Europe Limited and Visa Inc, on 2 November 2015. Visa Inc. has agreed,
subject to regulatory approvals, to acquire Visa Europe Limited. The transaction was completed in
the second quarter (“Q2”) of 2016, Prior to Completion as at 31 December 2016, member banks
should re-estimate the fair value of each Member's existing AFS equity instrument, The Bank
revalue its Visa participation to equal the amount of eash consideration to be received of amount
EUR 6,586 thousands (RON 20.797 thousands). Revaluation was booked in 2016 “Other
comprehensive income,”

On 21 June 2016, Visa Inc, announced the completion of the acquisition of Visa Europe Ltd, In
accordance with the terms of the final transaction agreement, upon the ctosing of the transaction
Visa Inc. paid up-front cash consideration of EUR 12,2 billlon and issued preferred shares
equivalent to a value of EUR 5.3 billion to the sbarcholders of Visa Europe. In addition, a deferred
cash payment of EUR 1,12 billion, including interest, will be paid on the third anniversary of the
closing date,
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18 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE {CONTINUED)

The Bank recoguized its share of the sale proceeds, including RON 31,828 thousand in cash, RON
383 thousand in preferred shares and RON 11,085 thousand as the present value of the deferred
consideration in ‘Gains less losses from investment securities’,
Visa Europe AFS equity revaluation amounting to RON 2,066 thousand booked in 2015 Other
Comprehensive income of the Bank in anticipation of the finalization of Visa Inc. transaction in
2016, was accordingly reversed in 2016,

The table below sets out the carrying amounts of the Bank’s interests in funds recognized in the
standalone financial statements balance sheet as of 31 Decemher 2016, representing the maximum
exposure to loss in relation to these interests, total assets of the funds and total losses per interest:

31 December 2015
LF Balanecd Aetlve Fund

Bank's interest- assets

Investment securibies

Total carrying amount of
assets in relation to the
Bank's interests in the funds

Bank's interest- liabilities

Bank's maximum expasure to loss

Funds managed

by the Eurobank
Fund
Management
Company SA
Private

Mutual equity
funds funds
20,679 -
20679 -
20,679 -

Third party
managed funds

Mutu Private
al  equity
funds funds

Total

20,679

20,679

Total losses
recognised in
relation to each
of the entity's
interest in the
funds in:

P/  OCI
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18 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE {CONTINUED)

31 December 2016

LI Balanced Active Fund

Investment securities

Total carrying amount of
assets in relation to the
Bank's interests in the funds

Bank's maximum exposure to loss

Funds managed
by the Eurobank
Fund
Management

Company SA

Private

Mutual equity
funds funds
Bank's interest- assets
20,658 -

20,658
20,658

T i1

Third party
managed funds

Mutual
funds

Pl

Private

equity
funds

t e

Total

20,658

20,658

Total losses

recognised in
relation to each
of the entity's
interest in the

P/L

1l

fundsin:

0CI

Y
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18 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Total income for 2016 per type of fund

Total income for the year ended
31 December 2016

Gains from assets measured at FV

"Total income for 2015 per type of fund

Total income for the year ended
31 December 2014

Gains from assets measured at FV

Funds managed

by the Eurobank
Fund

Management
Company SA

Private

Mutual equity
funds funds

Funds managed
by the Eurchank
Fund
Management
Company SA

Mutua Private equity
1funds funds

8o -

31 December 2016
Third party
managed

funds Total
Private

Mutual equity
funds funds

31 December 2015

Third party
managed
funds Total
Private
Mutual equity
funds funds

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.

83 of 106




Bancpost SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

{all mnounts in RON thousand unless otherwise stated)

18  INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

LF Money Market Cash
Fund

Bank's interest- assets

Investment securities

Total carrying amount of
assets in relation to the
Bank's interests in the
funds

Bank's maximum exposure to
loss

LF Money Market Cash
TFund

Bank's interest- assets

Investment securities

Total carrying amount of
assets in relation to the
Bank's interests in the
funds

Bank's maximum exposure to
loss

Funds managed by
the Eurobank
Fund Management ‘Third party
Company SA managed funds
Private Private
Mutnal equity Mutual equity
funds funds funds funds
65,414 - - -
65,414 z z -
65,414 - - -
Funds managed hy
the Eurohank
Fund Management Third party
CompanySA  managed funds
Private Private
Mutual equity Mutual equity
funds funds funds funds
65,249 - - -
65,249 . 2
65,249 - - -

31 December 2010

Total losses
recognised in
relation to each of
the entity's
interest in the
Total funds in:
P/1. 0OCI
65,414 - -
65,414 - e
65,414 - -
31 December 2015
Total losses
recognised in
relation to each of
the entity's interest
Total in the funds in;
P/L 0CI
65,249 - -
65,249 - -
65,249 - -
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18 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVATLABLE FOR SALE (CONTINUED}

Total income for 2016 per type of fund

Total income for the year ended
31 December 2016

Gains from assets measured at FV
Tatal income for 2016 per type of fund

Total income for the year ended
31 December 2015

Losses from assets measured at FV

Funds managed by the
Eurobank Fund
Management Company SA
Private
equity
funds

Mutual
funds

165 -

Funds managed by the
Eurobank Fund
Management Company SA
Private
equity
funds

Mutual
funds

(1:151) -

31 December 2016

Third party
managed funds Total
Private
Mutual equity
funds funds
- - 165

31 December 2015

Third party
managed funds Total
Private
Mutual equity
funds funds
- - (1,151)

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] forin an integral pait of these financial statements,
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Carrying amount at 31 December 2014

Cost at 31 December 2014
Accumnlated depreciation

Carrying amount at 31 December 2014

Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Amortisation charge

Carrying amount at 31 December 2015

Cost at 31 December 2015
Accumulated depreciation

Carrying amount at 31 December 2015
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Awmortisation charge

Carrying amount at 31 Dceember 2016

Cost at 31 December 2016
Accumulated depreciation

Liccnce and

Software
under

software development

67,068

171,120
{104,061)

67,068

25,508

(11,775)
Bo.801

196,637
(115,836)

80,801

2,631

{10,911)

72,721

199,267
(126,746)

28,404

28,404

28.404

12,341
(25,508)

15,237

14,067
{2,631)

26,673

26,673

Total
95,472

199,533
(104,061)

95,472

12,341

(11,775)
96,038

211,874
(115,836)

906,038
14,067

(10,911)
99,194

225,940
(126,746)

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Equipment. fixture

buildings & fittings ehicies Total
Carrying amount at
31 December 2014 280,862 70,499 407 331,768
Cost at 31 December 2014 419,851 257,064 14,143 691,058
Accumulated depreciation (1a28,989) (206,565) (13,736) (359,290)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2014 280,862 50,499 407 431,768
Additions 5,381 777 230 6,388
Disposals (3,683) (658) - (4,341)
Depreciation charge (11,003) (10,948) (143) (22,094)
Caxrying amount at
31 December 2015 271,557 29,670 494 311,721
Cost at 31 December 2015 410,928 144,387 13,583 568,808
Aceumulated depreciation (139,371) (104,717}  (13,089) (257,177)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2015 271,557 29,670 494 11,72
Additions 4,233 1,853 - 6,086
Disposals (8,966) (1,532) (6) (10,504)
Depreciation charge (11,040) {(10,089) (178) (21,307)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2016 255,784 29,902 310 285,906
Cost at 31 December 2016 402,661 140,972 11,161 554,794
Accumulated depreciation (146,877) (111,070) (10,851) (268,798)

Included in office and computer equipment are assets held under finance leases with a carrying
value of RON 150 thousand (2015: 184 thousands). Refer to Note 31

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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21  OTHER ASSETS

Other financial assety

Management fee receivable for administration of sub-
participated loans

Deferred cash considerations for Visa shares

Guarantee Deposits

Sundry receivables

Amounts in course of settlement

Other financial assets

Provision for other financial assets

Total other financial assets net

Other non-financial assets

Inventory

Prepayments

Receivable from state in respect of other taxes
Provision for receivable from state in respect of taxes
Total other non-financial assets

Total other assets

11,145
2,452
1,670
8,961
23,469
13,248
(13,156)
47,789

291
7,638
8,200
(1,994)
14,138

!él,gQQ

7,404
1,541
11,848
12,783
13,427
(13,238)
33765

265
2,647
8,400

11,312

45,077

All of the above assets are expeeted to be recovered more than twelve months after the year-end,
except for sundry receivables of RON 13.156 thousand (2015; RON 13,238 thousand),

Provision for other financial assets

Provision at 1 January
Charge for the period (Note 9)
Foreign exchange differences (gain)/loss

Provision at 31 December

Provision for other non- financial assets

Provision at 1 January
Charge for the period (Note 9)
Foreign exchange differenees (gain)/loss

Provision at 31 December

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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21 OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Analysis by credit quality of other assets outstanding at 31 December 2016 {s as follows:

Neither past due nor
impaired
- Not due at the date
of authorization of
the financial
statements for
issue
Total neither past
due nor
impaired
Past due but not
impaired
- less than 30 days
overdue
- over 360 days
overdue
Total past due but
not
impaired
Receivables
colectivelly
determined to be
impaired
(gross)
- over 360 days
overdue
Total collective
impaired
{gross)
Less impairment
provision
Total other
financial
receivables

Management
fee receivable
for
administratio
n of sub-
partcipated
loans

11,145

11,145

11,145

Deferred
cash
considera
tions for
Visa
shares

2,452

2,452

Guarantee Sundry Amounts in
Dcposits receivables course of
seftlement
Other
financial
assets
1,672 8,961 23,469 90
1,672 8,961 23,469 90
- - - 13,156
- - - 13,156
(13,156)
1,672 8.961 23,469 g0

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] forin an integral part of these financial statements.
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21 OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Analysis by credit quality of other assets outstauding at 31 Decembher 2015 is as follows:
Deferred cash Guarantee Sundry Amountsin
Manageme considerations Deposits receivables course of
nt fee forVisa shares settlement
receivahble
for
administra
tion of Other
sub- financi
participate al
d loans assels Totg

Neither past due nor
impaired
- Not due at the date of

authorisation of the
financtal

statements for issue 7,404
Total neither past
due nor

impaired 7,404
Past due but not
impaired
- less than 3o days
overdue - - - - - -
- over 360 days overdue - - - - - -
Total past due but
not

impaired - - - - - -
Receivables colectiveily

determined to be
impaired

(gross)
- over 360 days overdue - - - - - 13,238 13,25
Total collective
impaired

(gross) - - - - - 13,238 13,23
Less impairment ’

provision - - - - - (13,238) (13,2238
Total other financial

receivables 7,404

1

1,547 11,848 12,783 189 33,77

1,547 11,848 12,783 189 33,77

L547 11,848 12,783 189 3372

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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22 DUETO CTHER BANKS

2016 201
Sight deposits from banks 32,153 17,660
Term deposits from banks 408,723 735,923
Total due to other banks 440,876 753,583

A currency analysis and residual maturity profile of amounts due to banks is presented in Note 3.
The sight deposits bear an interest rate between 0% - 0,8% for foreign currency and for RON is 0%.
The term deposits bear an interest rate of 6,2% for RON and 2,3% for EUR,

As at 31 December 2016 term deposits from the Parent Bank Eurobank Ergasias were RON 227,055
thousand and deposits from Eurobank Private Bank Luxembourg amonnted to RON 29,600
thousand (2015: Eurchank FErgasias RON 672,315 thousand and PFurobank Private Bank
Luxembourg RON 26,600 thousand),

23 DULETO CUSTOMERS

During 2016 interest rates ranged from 0,55% to 1,35% (2015: from 0,15% to 3,40%) on RON
denommated term deposits and from 0,05% to 1,35% (2015: from 0,05% to 2,40%) on EUR
denominated term deposits. A currency analysis and residual maturity profile of amounts due to
customers is presented in Note 3.

2016 2015

Sight deposits 4,020,491 3,263,041

Term deposits 4,807,566 5,052,290

Collateral deposits 110,375 90,209

Saving instruments 18,196 19,066

Total customer accounts 8,056,628 8,424,606

Economic sector concentrations within customer accounts ave as follows;

2016 2015
Amount %  Amount %
General governments 203,669 2,27% 55,645 0,66%
Current accounts / overnight deposits 171,897 1,92% 36,604 0,43%
Deposits with agreed maturity 31,772 0,35% 19,041 0,23%
Other financial institutions 343,074 3,83% 378,350 4,49%
Current accounts / overnight deposits 80,989 0,90% 69,305 0,82%
Deposits with agreed maturity 262,085 2,03% 309,045 3,67%
Non-finaneial institutions 2,377,093  26.54% 1,975,664 23,45%
Current accounts / overnight deposits 1,498,617 16,73% 1,238,232 14,70%
Deposits with agreed maturity 878,476 9,81% 737,432 8,75%
Households 6,032,792 67,.36% 6,014,947 70,40%
Current accounts / overnight deposits 2,268,088  25,33% 1,918,901 22,78%
Deposits with agreed maturity 3,763,804  42,08% 4,096,046 48,62%
Total customer accounts 8,056,628 100,00% 8,424,606 100,00%

‘The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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23 DUE TO CUSTOMERS {(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016, included in customer accounts are deposits of RON 7.549 thousand (2015:
RON 8.321 thousand) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under import letters of credit,

24 OTIER BORROWED FUNDS

2016 201
Loans from banks 201,855 372,427
Subordinated loans from other banks 454,305 452,787
Liabilities from repo transactions 214,231 -
Total other horrowed funds 870,301 825,914
Loans from banks:
2016 201
EIB(a—1f) 52,706 86,711
EBRD (g —s) 62,745 90,663
1IFC(Y) 18 6o
Bank of Nova Scotia (u — v) - -
Banca Popolare di Sondrio (w-uu) 86,286 122,540
Citihank Europe PLC Dublin (vv - xx) - 72,453
Total loans from banks 201,855 972,427
Subordinated loans from other banks
2016 201
Furobank Ergasias (yy - aaa) 454,305 452,787
Total subordinated loans from other banks 454,305 452,787
a, On 25 October 2007, a loan in the amount EUR 5,000,000 was obtained from the

European Bank of Investments (“EIB”), repayable in 2017. The interest (Euribor 3M +
0,046%) is payable quarterly.

b, On 14 December 2007, a loan in the amount EUR 10,000,000 was obtained from the
European Bank of Investments (“EIB”), repayable in 2022, The interest (Euribor aM +
0,049%) i3 payable quarterly.

c. On 17 October 2008, a loan in the amount EUR 5,000,000 was obtained from the
Furopcan Bank of Investments (“EIB”), repayable in 2028. The interest (Euribor 3M +
0,080%) is payable gquarterly.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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24 OTHERBORROWED FUNDS (CONTINUED)

d.

Je

On 16 November 2009, a loan in the amount EUR 25,000,000 was obtained from the
European Bank of Investments (“EIB"), repaid in 2016, The interest (Buribor 3M +
0,526%) is payable quarterly.

On 16 Noveraber 2009, a loan in the amount EUR 5,000,000 was obtained from the
European Bank of Investinents (“EIB”), repayable in 2021. The interest (Euribor 3M +
0,582%) is payable quarterly.

On 26 November 2010, a loan in the amount EUR 5,000,000 was obtained from the
European Bank of Investments (“EIB"), repayable in 2017. The interest {Euribor 3M +
0,267%) is payable quarterly.

On 13 October 2015, a loan in the amount EUR 4,500,000 was obtained from the European
Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD”), repaid in 2016. The interest (Buribor
3M + 1,15%) is payable quarterly.

On 28 Qctober 2015, a loan in the amount EUR 615,000 was obtained from the European
Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD"), repaid in 2016, The interest (Euribor
3M +1,15%) is payable quarterly.

On 29 October 2015, a loan in the amount EUR 5,500,000 was obtained from the European
Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD"), repaid in 2016. The interest (Euribor
aM +1,15%) is payable quarterly,

On 17 November 2015, a loan in the amount EUR 3,300,000 was obtained from the
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (*EBRD”), repaid in 2016. The
interest (Euribor M + 1,15%) is payable quarterly.

On 18 December 2015, a loan in the amount EUR 1,900,000 was obtained from the
Turopean Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD"), repaid in 2016, The
interest {Euribor 3M + 1,15%) is payable quarterly.,

On 24 December 2015, a loan in the amount EUR 4,330,000 was obtained from the
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (*"EBRD”), repaid in 2016. The
interest (Euribor 3M + 1,15%) is payable quarterly.

On 24 December 2015, a loan in the amount EUR 855,000 was obtained from the European
Back for Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD”), repaid in 2016. The interest (Euribor
3M + 1,15%) is payable quarterly,

On 5 December 2016, a loan in the amount of EUR 4,350,000 was obtained from the
Turopean Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD"), repayable in 2017, The
interest (Euribor 3M + 1,15%) is payable quarterly.

On 5 Deceinber 2016, a loan in the amount of EUR 6,900,000 was obtained from the
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD"), repayable in 2017. ‘'The
interest (Euribor 3M + 1,15%) is payable quarterly.

On 5 December 2016, a loan in the amount of USD 2,680,000 was obtained from the
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD"), repayable in 2017, The
interest (Euribor 3M + 1,15%) is payable quarterly.

On 13 December 2016 a loan of EUR 16,000,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repayable on 13 June 2017. The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.
On 13 December 2016 a loan of EUR 3,000,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repayable on 13 June 2017. The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.

The notes set ottt on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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24

Y.

aa.

bhb.

cc.

dd.

ee,

OTHER BORROWED FUNDS (CONTINUED)

On 31 October 2006, Parent Bank (“Eurobank Ergasias”) granted a subordinated loan in
the amount of EUR 15,000,000 repayable in October 2013. During 2011 the maturity of the
loan was extended until 31 October 2019. The interest rate (Euribor 3M + 0,65%) is
payable quarterly.

On 16 December 2005, Parent Bank (“Eurcbank Ergasias”) granted a subordinated loan in
the amount of EUR 35,000,000 repayable in December 2012, Durlng 2011 the maturity of
the loan was extended until 16 December 2019, The interest is (Euribor 3M + 0,65%) is
payable quarterly,

On 31 October 2007, Parent Bank (“Eurobank Ergasias”) granted an un-termed
subordinated loan in the amount of EUR 50,000,000 for an undetermined period, The
interest (Euribor 3M + 0,65%) is payable in quarterly payments,

On 23 October 2015 a loan of EUR 1,000,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 25 January 2016, The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,45%) is payable
quarterly.

On 06 November 2015 a loan of EUR 6,000,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 09 May 2016, The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly,
On 16 November 2015 a loan of EUR 2,500,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 16 May 2016, The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly,
On 17 November 2015 a loan of EUR 3,000,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 17 May 2016. The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.
On 27 November 2015 a loan of EUR 750,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 27 May 2016, The interest (Ruribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.
On 27 November 2015 a loan of EUR 6,000,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repatd on 27 May 2016. The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.
On 04 December 2015 a loan of EUR 2,000,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 04 March 2016. The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,282%) is payable
quarterly.

On 09 December 2015 a loan of EUR 572,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 09 March 2016, The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.
On 11 December 2015 a loan of EUR 350,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 11 March 2016. The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly

On 18 December 2015 a loan of EUR 2,600,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 11 March 2016, The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payahle quarterly.
On 21 December 2015 a loan of EUR 450,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 21 March 2016, The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.
On 24 November 2015 a loan of USD 500,000 was obtalned from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 24 May 2016, The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.
On 09 December 2015 a loan of USD 1,518,000 was obtained from Banca Popolare di
Sondrio, repaid on 09 March 2016, The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payahle quarterly.
On 06 October 2015 a loan of EUR 11,000,000 was obtained from Citibank Europe IE,
repaid on 06 January 2016. The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.
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24 OTHER BORROWED FUNDS (CONTINUED)

ji. On 10 November 2015 a loan of EUR 5,000,000 wag obtained from Citibank Europe IE,
repaid on 10 May 2016, The interest (Euribor 3M + 0,4%) is payable quarterly.

The above subordinated loans are payable only on maturity or may he converted at the agreement
of both parties, in share capital. The EUR 50 million loan from the parent with no maturity may be
repaid only after National bank of Romania consent was obtained.

Subordinated debt of RON 454,305 thousand (2015: RON 452.787 thousand) carries a variable
interest rate of Euribor 3M+0,65 % p.a. and matures on 2019, The debt ranks after all other
creditors in the case of liquidation.

25 OTHERFINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other financial labilities comprise the following:

2016 2015
Financial liabillties
Amounts in transit/settlements 39,469 34,017
Leasing 166 204
Goods, services and fixed assets payables 26,167 26,441
Other financial liabilities 2,022 2,601
Total financial liabilities 68,724 63.263
Non-financial Habilities
Social eontributions and salaries taxes 7,014 7,854
Payables to employees 488 403
Other liabilities 4,639 14,363
Provisions for credit commitments (i) 13,458 10,921
Provision for liabilities (ii) 38,766 26,623
Other provisions (iii) 9,094 24,056
Total Non-financial liabilities 73,459 84,220
Total other financial linbilities 142,183 147,483

Provision for credit related commitments represents specific provisions created for losses incurred
on financial guarantees and commitments to extend credit to borrowers whose financial conditions
deteriorated.

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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25 OTHERYFINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

® Provisions for credit commitments

2016 2015
1 January 10,921 13,324
Amounts charged during the year 2,478 -
Amounts cleared during the year (Note 10) - (2,175)
Forelgn exchange differences 59 (228)
31 December 13,458 10,921

The balance as at 31 December 2016 of RON 13,458 thousand and is composed by provisions for
enforcement risks of letters of guarantee commitment letters and loan financing commitments.

(li) Provision for liabilities

Branch
Litigations  closure Other  Total
1 January 2016 14,623 8,786 3214 26623
Amounts charged during the year 17,455 - - 17,455
Amounts released during the year (301) {4,664) (347) (5,312)
Foreign exchange differences - - - -
31 December 2016 ALT7Z da22 2,866 38766
Branch
Litigations  closure Other  Total
1 January 2015 _5,229 22,757 3,511 31,497
Amounts charged during the year 10,627 527 (292) 10,861
Amounts released during the year (1,233)  (34,498) (5) (15,735)
Foreign exchange differences - - - -
31 December 2015 14,623 8,786 3214 26,623

Provision for liabilities mostly relate to litigations amounted in 2016 RON 31,777 thousand (2015:
RON 14,623 thousand) and provisions booked In respect of the branch closure amounted in 2016
RON 4,122 thousand (2015: RON 8.786 thousand).

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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25 OTHERFINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(iii) Other provision

Included in this category are retirement provisions for which the Bank has a legal obligation to pay
retirement benefits to its employees on retirement date and provisions for untaken holiday. The
payment made on retirement eonsists in a number of salaries paid to the former employee, The
Bank uses actuarial teechniques to make a reliable estimate of the amount of benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods based on a collective work
contraet. For other information please refer to Note 34,

26 SHARE CAPITAL

2016 2015
Statutory registered amount 1,178,865 1,178,865
Hyperinflation adjustment prior to 2004 171,380 171,380
Total Share Capital 1,350,245 1,350,245
Shareholder structure
In percent (%) 2016 2015
Eurobank Ergasias SA 93,78 93,78
ERB New Europe Holding BY 5,37 5,37
Individuals (including employees and retired staff) 0,85 0,85
Total Share Caplital 100.00 100,00

At 31 December 2016 the share capital of the Bank consisted of 2,047.163.540 (2015: of
2.947.163.540} allotted and fully paid ordinary shares of RON 0,40 each (2015: RON 0,40 each),
Each share carries one vote,

The Parent Bank

Eurobank Ergasias S.A., the parent Bank is active in retail corporate and private banking assets
management insarance treasury capital markets and other services. The parent Bank Is
incorporated in Greece and its shares are listed on the Athens Stock Exchange, The Group operates
mainly in Greece and in Ceniral Eastern and South Eastern Europe,

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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27 OTHER RESERVES

2016 201
Legal reserve 43,324 42,190
General banking risk reserve 41,582 41,583
General reserve 71,847 71,847
Post-retirement benefits related reserve (2,459) (6,130)
Total Share Capital 154,294 149,490

As at 31 December 2016 under Romanian banking legislation the Bank is required to create the
following reserves from appropriation of profit:

- legal reserve appropriated at the rate of 5% of the gross profit. until the total reserve is equal
to 20% of the 1ssued and fully paid up share capital; and

- general reserve for banking risk appropriated from the gross profit at the rate of 1% of
assets bearing banking risks (until 31 December 2006. according with the regulation).

General reserves comprise the following items:

- forelgn exchange reserves related to foreign denominated cash, built up according to Law
189/2001 into an amount of 66,200 thousands;

- reserves built up for own funds increase into an amount of 5,467 theusands;

- other reserves into an amount of 180 thousands.

Amounts transferred to reserves must be used for the purposes designated when the transfer is
made. According to the local legislation these reserves cannot be used for other purposes.

28 ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
balances with less than go days initial maturity:

20106 2015

Cash 480,592 499,655
Current account with the Central Bank

(Note 13) 1,010,571 1,404,081

Loans and advances to banks (Note 14) 2,360,424 1,004,853

Total 3,851,087 2,098,580

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operation decisions. The Bank's
immediate parent is Eurobank Ergasias S.A. (Greece) (“Parent bank”},

‘The management includes the members of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, the
management of the Legal department, Compliance and Internal Audit departments and their
relatives,

A number of hanking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of
business. These include loans deposits and foreign currency transactions acquisition of other
services and sale of loans. These transactions bear the normal market prices.

Related party transactons - Eurobank Ergasias 8.A. shareholding structure

In November 2015, following the completion of the Eurobank Ergasias S.A. share capital increase,
fully covered by investors, institutional and othcrs the percentage of the Eurobank Ergasias S.A.
ordinary shares with voting rights held by the Hellenic Financial Stability Fund (HFSF) decreased
from 35.41% to 2.38%.

Despite the aforementioned significant decrease of its percentage, the HFSF is still considered to
have significant influence over the Eurobank Ergaslas S.A, In particular, in the context of the Law
3864/2010, as in force, HFSF exercises its voting rights in the Eurobank Eigasias S.A. General
Assembly only for decisions concerning the amendment of the Eurobank Ergasias 8.A. Articles of
Association, including the increase or decrease of the Eurgbank Ergasias S.A. capital or the
granting of a corresponding authorization to the Eurobank Ergasias S.A. Board, decisions
concerning the mergers, divisions, conversions, revivals, extension of duration or dissolution of the
Furobank Ergasias §.4., the transfer of assets (including the sale of subsidiaries), or any other issue
requiring approval by an increased majority as provided for in Company Law 2190/1920. In
addition, Eurcbank Ergasias S.A. has entered into a new Relationship Framework Agreement
(RFA) with the HFSF on 4 December 2015 replacing the previous one, signed on 26 August 2014,
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Assets

Loans and advances to
Banks (interest rate:
0.55% - 2.24%)

Loans and advances to
Customers (interest
rate: 1.57% - 6.08%)

Investment securities
available for sale

Other debtors

Derivative financial
instruments

Liabilitdcs

Due to banks (interest
rate; 0.878% - 0.927%)

Due to customers
(interest rate: 0.1% -
3.75%)

Other borrowed funds
(interest rate: 0.732% -
0.738%)

Other creditors

Derivative financial
instruments

Key

Management Sharcholders

3.979

3,979

2,784

2,042,009

2,040,997

36

1,066
695.974

685,410

(44)
42

10,566

2016
Other
group Key
entities* Management Shareholders
102,124 3,038 644,238
- - 642,531
- 3,038 -
86,271 - -
15,853 - 36
- - 1,671
226,769 2,300 1,157,729
- - 689,275
226,266 2,309 -
- - 452,787
503 - 1,384
- - 14:283

*) Does not Include entitles with insignificant influence,
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2g RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2016 2015
Other Other
Key group Key group
Management Shaveholders entities®* Management Shareholders entities®
Profit and loss 12 14,820 (5,640} 85 22,646 (8,964)
Interest income 115 13,067 4,094 99 15,512 5,792
Interest expense n (7960) (2,301) (17 (18,266) (5,433)
Net trading income/(loss) 2 11,287 - - 26,687 -
Fee and Commission
income 2 22 4,256 3 4 10,899
Tee and Commission
expense - (574) (1,261) - (1,161) -
Other operating income - - 747 - - 4,300
Other operating expense - (1,021) (16,175) - (130) (24,522)
Commitments a70 - 183,460 307 2,202 204,578
Financial guarantees - 454,832 58,263 - 453,102 17,039
*) Does not include entities with insignificant influence.
2016 2015
Remuneration of the Key Management Personnel 3,476 3,271
30 CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT AND CENTRAL
BANK
2016 201
Balances with the Central Bank (Note 13) 1,010,507 1,404,081
Debt securities (Note 19) 1,344,758 1,650,018
Total assets 2,355,265 3,054,009

The notes set out on pages [7]to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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31 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Assets pledged/restricted

Assetspledged Related liahility

2010 2015 2016 2015
Cash Collateral Deposits 66,905 18,570 16,663 -
Government securities (Repo transaction) 225,685 - 214,231 -

The halance related to these collateral deposits includes RON 62,154 thousands that relate to
settlement of derivatives (CIRS, FX SWAP) with Parent Bank.

Credit related commitiments.
The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are avallable to a customer as
required,

Guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will
make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties, carry the
same credit risk as loans.

Documentary and commercial letters of credit, which are written undertakings by the Bank on
behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount
under specific terms and conditions, are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to
which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct borrowing.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in the
form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend
credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments.
However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments since most
commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit
standards.

The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments
generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments. Outstanding
amounts are:

2016 201
Letters of guarantee 380,809 444,878
Letters of credit 2,836 321
Undrawn loan commitments 1,145,565 919,038
Total credit commitments 1,529,210 1,364,237

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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31 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The letters of Guarantee include letters of guarantee in amount of RON 101,827 thousand (2015:
RON 197,851 thousand) issued for credit risk it respect of loans granted by Eurobank Private Bank
Luxembourg 8.A. to Romanian customers,

Legal proceedings,

From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Bank may be received,
On the basis of its own estimates and both internal and external professional advice, management
is of the opinion that material losses will be incurred in respect of claims, and accordingly a
provision has been made in these financial statements, at 31 December 2016 an amount of RON
15,901 thousands (2015: RON 12.051 thousands),

Tax contingencies,

The Romanian taxation system is undergoing a process of consolidation and harmonization with
the European Union legislation. However, there are still different interpretations of the fiscal
legislation. In various circumstances, the tax authorities may have different approaches to certain
issues, and assess additional tax liabilities, together with late payment interest and penalties
(accruing at a rate of approximately 22% p.a.). In Romanis, tax periods remain open for 7 years,
The Bank's management considers that the tax liabilities included in these financial statements arc
faitly stated. The last tax authority’s inspection was performed for period January 1, 2006 until
December 31, 2010.

Capital expenditure commilments

As at 31 December 2016 the Bank has contractual capital expenditure commitments in respeet of
equipment and software totalling RON 2,632 thousand {z015: RON 2,263 thousand).

Operating lease commilments

Where the Bank is the lessee, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable building
and cars operating leases are as follows:

2016 201
No later than 1 year 6,167 33,916
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 15,002 106,475
Later than 5 years 3,040 44,000
Total 24,209 184,391

The notes set out on pages [7] to [106] form an integral part of these financial statements,
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31 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

On 31 December 2016 and 2015 the future minimum lease payments for financial leases were as
follow:

2016 2015
Up to one year 38 38
From two to five years ineluding 111 149
Total 149 187

Compliance with covenants

The Bank is subject to certain covenants primarily relating to its borrowings. Non-compliance with
such covenants may result in negative consequences for the Bank including growth in the cost of
borrowings and declaration of default. Management believes that the Bank is in compliance with
covenants at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Inselvency law for individuals

The initjal term for the law’s entry into force was 26th of December, 2015; postponed by means of
GEO for the 31st of December, 2016. By means of GEO 98/2016, the Law no. 151/2015 on the
insolvency procedure for natural persons shall enter into force on the 1st of August 2017.

In this regard, as provided by Government Decislon 11/2016, it is necessary to set up 42 local
committees of insolvency, the technical apparatus and the adoption of law enforcement rules,

A draft regarding the implementation guldelines (law enforcement rules) is made available on the
National Consumers’ Protection Authority website.

Taking into consideration that the secondary legislation addressing the law enforcement rules are
still pending and also the fact that the committees for law application are not yet set up there is
possible that the term for entering into force to be postponed again.

32 STANDARD LEGAL STAFF RETIREMENT INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS

Impact on other comprehensive income for the ycar (incrense/decrease):

2016 2015
Measurement of the retirement benefit obligations, net of tax 3,081 4,340
Other comprehensive income for the year 3,081 4,340

Staff retirement indemnity obligation

The Bank provides for staff retirement indemnity obligation for its employees who are entitled to a
lump sum payment at the date of retirement, if they remain in the employment of the Bank until
normal retirement age, in accordance with the local labour legislation. The above retirement
indemnity obligations typlcally expose the Bank to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and
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32 STANDARD LEGAL STAFF RETIREMENT INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

salary risk. Therefore a decrease in the discount rate used to calculate the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows or an inerease in future salaries will increase the staff retirement

indemnity obligations of the Bank.

The movement in the standard legal staff retirement indemnity obligations over the year is as

follows:

Balance at 1 Jantuary

Current service cost

Interest cost

Past service cost and (gains)/losses on settlemnents

Measurements:

Past service cost arising over last period

Actuarial {(gains)/losses arising from changes in

demographic Assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financtal
assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience
adjustments

Exchange differences

Benefit payments

Balance at 31 December

Significant actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) were as follows:

In % (per cent)

Discount rate

Price inflation

Rate of ecompensation increase: 2017-18; 1,00%
2019: 2,00%
2020+: 3,00%

2016

22,525
(769)
(270)

(1,213)

(10,530)

(840)
(289)

(288)

2016
3,50
2,00
2016: 1,0%
2017-18; 2,0%
2019+: 3,0%

201
4,818
488
202
(159)
12,806
(1,711)
406
6,471

(796)

22,525

3,55
2,00
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32 STANDARD LEGAL STAFF RETIREMENT INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Awmount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows

The use of a discount rate plus 50BP will lead to an actuarial liability lower by 6% and the opposite,
a discount rate minus 50BP will lead to an actuarial liability higher by 7%.

The use of a salary rate plus 50BP will lead to an actuarial liability higher by 3% and the opposite, a
salary rate minus 50BP will lead to an actuarial liability lower by 3%.

Defined Benefit
Obligation %
Discount rate increased by 0.5% 2,787,411 -6%
Discount rate reduced by 0.5% 8,020,530 7%
Salary rate increase by 0.5% 8,595,735 3%
Salary rate reduced by 0.5% 8,080,784 -3%
Current Service
Cost
%
Discount rate increased by 0.5% 725,945 -0%
Discount rate reduced by 0.5% 885,470 11%
Salary rate increase by 0.5% 885,680 11%
Salary rate reduced by 0.5% 725,086 -9%

The average duration of the standard legal staff retirement indemnity obligations at
31 December 2016 is 16,46 years (2015: 16,10 years).

33 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

During 2017, up to the moment of signing these financial statements there were no other significant
events having an impact on the financial statements,
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